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CORPORATE INFORMATION
X R]E
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Wu Xu
Mr. Liu Chao

COMPANY SECRETARY
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
N R]E M
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Cayman Islands
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Room 407
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Cayman Islands
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DEFINITIONS

In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the following meanings:

RARER  BXEREAEIN > TIHRAEEGATEE

“Advisory Committee”

"Articles of Association”

(AR ERADR

"Audit Committee”

[BZEE®

“Board”

=350

"CG Code”
[(EEARSTA

“Chairman”

[EEEK]

"Company” or
“Landsea Green Life"

NG E o gt

“connected person(s)”

[EEAL]

“controlling shareholder(s)"

2 R A 3R

"Director(s)"

a committee appointed by the Board comprising Mr. Tian, Ms. Liu Yan and Mr. Wu Xu, with the
power and authority to administer and distribute Shares under the Share Award Scheme
HELLE BIFRZEIRRBEEEXNEZRZEINZES AERNLREERE
B&in B2 BT BIE IR A R 9 AR D

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time

RABEBERAL TR ZEF]

the audit committee of the Board

EERERZES®

the board of Directors

BEER

the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules

ERRIMERC PrE B EER TR

the chairman of the Board

EZRMNESEER

Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability, the issued Shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1965)

BB EERBARDR  RASESTMALNBRAR - B BTN
AT ER T (RS : 1965)

has the meaning as ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

AR EMARAMETRE

has the meaning as ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

AR EMARAMETRE

director(s) of the Company

[E%] RRARES

"ESG” environmental, social and governance
[ESGJ RE - -HBgRER

"GFA” gross floor area

[ZEEmAE] EEEE

6 Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2024




DEFINITIONS

“Group”
[R&EH]

"HKFRSs”
(BB HREEA

"HKICPA"
[BEAEGMAE]

"HKS”
[#5E]

“Hong Kong”
[&E]

"

“Landsea Green Management
[ eER ]

“Landsea Group”
NGESESE N

“Listing”

[ 7]

“Listing Date”
[ B

“Listing Rules”
[ EmR Al

“Model Code”
(152 Al
“Mr. Tian”

[AEE]

the Company and its subsidiaries

ZANCIDSE S]]

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
B8 s 4R

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
BRGNS

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEEEERAET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEFBERATHRER

Landsea Green Management Limited , a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 106)

AFREEEARAR  REXMEREHE AR (BRHAE : 106)

Landsea Group Co, Ltd. (BAzFSEE R B R A
PRC with limited liability on 24 December 2001 vvh|ch is controlled as to 50.0% by Mr. Tian
PREERONDARAR R-TET—F+ A +TORETBERIZNHRNHBER AR
P 55 AR 12 11 50.0%

a joint stock company established in the

the listing of the Shares on the main board of the Stock Exchange
PR A OB <X BT E AR T

8 July 2021, being the date of the Listing
—E—FtANB LW EH

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Bt X Fag s E R Al

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
(3 of the Listing Rules
FHRAIMSEGHE LM ETAZTESTETESFXZHNRLETRI

Mr. Tian Ming, the Chairman, an executive Director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company

HALE RAREFR  ATEEFHRIERKRR
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DEFINITIONS

“Mr. Tian Associates”

[AEEHEA

"

“Nanjing Property Management

(ERYEEE]

“Nomination Committee”

[RBZBE]

“PRC”
[FEL]

“Prospectus”

[ ER]

“Remuneration Committee”

[#FrNEZ B g

“Reorganisation”

[E4]

“RMB’
TAR®)]

“SFO”
(&7 R HE &M

“Shareholder(s)”
[A% 5 |

“Share(s)”
[R5 ]

“Share Award Scheme”

[ Bz fn 22 Rh =t & ]
“Share Option Scheme”

[ R B4t &1

Mr. Tian and his associates (excluding Landsea Green Management and its subsidiaries but
including its joint ventures and associates)

HEERHEBEA (TEEMAFEEEERENBAREBREL S LK R

ST

BhE)

Nanjing Landsea Property Management Co,, Ltd. (F§ R EARF W B IE B R A 7)), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

ERAFMEEEERAR RPRKIMERAR  ARANEEZERNBE AR

the nomination committee of the Board

EXRRA%ES

the People’s Republic of China
hEARKNE

the prospectus of the Company dated 25 June 2021
ARRBBHAZE_—FAA-THEMNBRER

the remuneration committee of the Board

EERFMZES

the reorganisation of the Group in preparation of the Listing as disclosed in the Prospectus

HINBRERMEE  AEELASHELETMET ZEA

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FENEEEBARYE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong)

FREPIE 7 B 7 MR R

holder(s) of the Shares
BB A

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
AR AR A R FEE00 /ETTH BB

the share award scheme adopted by the Company on 18 March 2022
RARRZZEZZF=A+/\BRRMA R D ZEE &

the share option scheme conditionally approved and adopted by the Company on 15 June
2021
RATNR T —FRNA T+ BB GREBEEILERKH A D BT 2

8 Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2024




DEFINITIONS

usq.m.u

[ 75

“Stock Exchange” or

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or
"The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong”

B P S [ BB P 3K
[RAEBERHAH]

“Year” or "Year of 2024" or
"FY2024" or "Period”

[FEl =T =mF ]k
[—Z PB4 sk [ Hif ]

u% ”

[%]

square meters

FIK

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BEEMAERFAARRNE

the year ended 31 December 2024

BE-T-mET-A=+—HILFE

per cent.

Aatt

RS EERBERAR/ T _NFEFR 9



MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2024
—T_MFERERERE

v,

2024 EMLEE UG LEERERL

2024 China Leading P M < o 4
ina Lasding Broperty Mansgement Companles In terms o

———

“MEERERENRL Y

RE0UPAALRBFTLFSTEARARL L
R e,
20240 ENYREEBEY e o e o 8 o e
2024 TOP100 Praperty Management Companies in China E

CERTIFICATE
e

i EL 2024+ EERAEREEHELRL

HE20AGEANLESEEEE 2024 China Internet Cammunity Opsration Leading Companies

AR
RHR2024¢ WERAHZARBAEE

HONORS OR AWARDS OF THE COMPANY IN 2024: 2024 F R ARV B RIF ¢

On 18 April, the Press Conference of Research Results of 2024 Top 100 - 4818 H » 2024 B W E R K B8 > EHFTAK
Property Service Providers in China and the 17th China Top 100 Property REmeBEETtEPEMERBERALER
Management Companies Forum was held in Beijing. China Index miBfEIt R AR o IR OB Am [ 2024 5F R
Academy released the “List of Top 100 Excellent Property Management MERBERESCERE]  AFZEEED
Companies in China in 2024", and Landsea Green Life was awarded three PIRE2024 B Y ERB A REETOP22] -
honors, namely “TOP22 of 2024 TOP100 Property Management [2024F B EHBHEELEELELE] [2024
Companies in China’, “2024 China Internet Community Operation FEYEERTETBLELERELE| =K
Leading Companies” and “2024 China Leading Property g o

Management Companies in terms of Marketisation of Business’.

10 Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2024
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2024
it EfE PN £ DT

CERTIFICATE CERTIFICATE
s e

2024+ E PR 55 Al A 4R 3073 o 2024 E IR 55 £ ) T stk

) 2024 Top 100 Property Management Companies in China

ceTnCre 229

T BT L A B2y )

20240 HAL LRI )y FTSA R R A )
PR A B R ) { o

On 8 May, at “Uphold Integrity and Await Opportunities for a Better - 5A8H ' EAHAFTWEEE N[ FIEFFRHEERE

Future” 2024 China Property Comprehensive Strength Top 100 Enterprises Fl204h B EGREENERECERRERS
Research Conference organized by CPM Think Tank, Landsea Green Life F AR EERE2024FENERKGE
was honored with three major industry awards, namely “22nd of 2024 EhrERECEFE2E|  [2024FEYESRE
Top 100 Property Management Companies in China’, 2024 Top BRELEREE]  [2024FEIYWERB L EE
100 High-quality Service Property Management Companies in 3098 | —IHTHEREEE -

China”, and 2024 Top 30 Property Management Companies in East

China".

AREEEERBEERAR/ T _NFFR 11




MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2024
ek RuESN o UL

~ | 2
2024 EAMUEAEETILA
—Bus#
AR EEERAR EREFLEEERAT

2024 EY RSB ERE TS DMk

20245 E L BRI BYDLAFAATAT ik
Byl
MR EERRAS

20247REWk AR S5 TR AL AR S #¥ AR AR AT Ak
AR EESRATE

cans
ZO-mERA

%
< Sy
w S— —— -
On 23 May, "Towards New 2024 China Property Enterprises « 58238 HERWIT EH W 1R H2024F B )
Comprehensive Strength Top 100 Summit” organized by EH Property ELEREBENRRES T LEET - LRE
Research (EB3¥f) was held in Shanghai. At the summit, “2024 China EHEFEM2024PEYELELEE LT R
Property Enterprises Comprehensive Strength Top 100 Research MEBE|  AFSECEETRE2024FEYE
Report’ was released, and Landsea Green Life was awarded four honors, TEEEENENR] (2024 FEWERKE A
namely “21st in Comprehensive Strength of China’s Property BYERBKERANZELE] - [2024 FE Y ERR
Enterprises in 2024", “2024 China Property Service Sample BHECYEREERLE] (2024 FE Y £ R
Benchmarking Enterprise of Public Building Property Services’, RERBHBFHELLE|HIEELE -
“2024 China Property Service Sample Benchmarking Enterprise
of Specialty Property” and “2024 China Leading Competitive
Enterprise of Property Services in East China".
12 Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2024
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2024

—ECMEAFRRLE

CERTIFICATE

20249 EliP iR EESGIEEE

2024 ESG Best Practice of China Listed Property Management Service Companies.

R TS (01965.HK)

2024 E EFY L&A
—W20E —

ZauE
—o=mENA
Top3n

2024%E bR AR RIS +E

ZWEE
ZO=mENA

=

2024 EM Lk ESGITR
= BBEE—

ZHEE
—Oo=@msE/NA

On 13 June, CPM Think Tank released the “2024 China Property
Management Industry Listed Property Enterprises Evaluation Research
Report”, and Landsea Green Life (01965.HK) was awarded the “2024
ESG Best Practice of China Listed Property Management Service
Companies”.

On 15 August, “Extraordinary 2024 China Real Estate Industry Brand Value
Summit” organized by EH Consulting and EH Property Research (12 %3
P1Hft) was grandly held. During the same period, 2024 White Paper on
Sustainable Development of China’s Property Management Industry” and
“2024 Research Results on Comprehensive Strength of Listed Property
Enterprises in China” were released. Landsea Green Life, with its excellent
comprehensive strength and high sense of social responsibility, was
awarded three honors, namely “20th of 2024 China Listed Property

non

Enterprises’, “2024 China Top 10 Listed Property Enterprises
with the Most Developmental Characteristics” and “2024 China

Property Enterprise ESG Rating — BBB".

6AI3H Y EEEREMQIUTREYES
BTE FMYSRFMERS) BAFHEEE
(01965HK) 22 [ 2024 B E T Y B EESGE
iz 0

8RISH  BEBSE - EBMHAEHOITA.
24P BEEEEMEEEES | FEERIT R
B SEEmMI204FEMETEANRERRD
FE] - 12024 E EYIEREeENAERKR]
AHFGEEERESUNCEREENINRE
NS EMR BE2024F B ETYELES
204 [2024FE ETECERAERERE
1038 | 2 [2024 FEI Y ¥ B EESGFE A —BBB | =
TABRER ©

RS EERBERAR/ T _NFEFR 13
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES
T MEAFRRLE

IN 2024
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HHEAFARFEHEE

%

™
On 14 November, CRIC Property Management released the “2024 1MA148  BERMmMEEM 2024 FER R
East China Property Service Capability Series Research Results’, in MERBNDRINARKR] - BAFFREEERE
which Landsea Green Life was awarded three honors, namely “24th [2024EREHYERBE HEREEF 245 -
of 2024 Top 100 Enterprises in East China Property Service [2024YEBRBHIHE=TR (F9H&)]
Capability’, “Top 30 (9th) in 2024 Jiangsu Province Property [2024 Y ERBE OB RTE] —HEE -
Service Capability’, and “Top 10 in 2024 Nanjing Property Service
Capability”.
On 16 November, the “2024 China Property Enterprise Service Capability 1MA6E -+ EFEEXREEE  FBZ
Top 100 Summit & China Property Enterprise Value Preservation Research BHEHBEEN TEERUEHEEHESR
Results", guided by the China Real Estate Association and hosted by XZEg  RBHVERBHAERE AN 220245
the China Association of Construction Education, with the Real Estate B YRS S B REE R EYRENFFK
Professional Committee of the China Association of Construction RITUAEREERIT ARG CEETREERER
Education and EH Property Service Research Institute as organizers, was IR 2024 F EI Y AR HTOP18 | IR EE - /g
grandly held in Beijing. Landsea Green Life was awarded the "2024 China TRAFYEEBEBERQARE —D R A MEMN D

14 Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2024
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2024
—ECMEAFRRLE

204 EAGSRAFKRBERBATNE
ME-BHAES
MRBENLERERAR

7 v

W45 MBEERA-RANERYE
AR LERARARRM LR

rhﬁﬂ.ﬁﬁ’]

HIm
TR Ll I

{ Bagie R Y
g ' WIS
2024 AR EXEFRBERBE@AAE ‘ 3 it 3

BR-EHAE8

# 2 2 i
unn)) ((cnma)) L/ {
Y v

B RGaEE

Property Management Service Capability TOP18’ for its outstanding RADHEE2024FERTEEHEERED L
performance. The First Branch and the Suzhou Branch of Nanjing Landsea #Y | - wEIRE HMNAAFIAREREE] 2024
Property Management Co., Ltd. were received the ‘2024 Nanjing PEEEYERKETER |HE ETEEHER
Residential Asset Preservation Pioneer Property Management’ FEPAHRE 2024 HEEEERENE
award, respectively. The managed Suzhou Landsea Langke Community B I HE5% o

project was honored with the “2024 China Residential Property
Service Benchmark Project’ title, and the managed Nanjing Haiyue
Mingdu project was awarded the “2024 Residential Asset Quality
Preservation Project’ title.

On 11 December, Landsea Green Life (01965) was awarded the title of  « 12 11 8 » BAF4R € 4 & (01965) 1£ %5 3@ B 4% B

"Most Valuable Real Estate and Property Company’ at the "9th FERIMLEES U XARBILIaFTEESHE
Zhitong Caijing Capital Market Annual Conference and Listed Company BEETHN [ ENEEBMECERATISFSE
Awards Ceremony” jointly organized by Zhitong Caijing and inbfund. MAREEHE | FEE [ RABEMERDE
com, the China overseas private equity fund one-stop service platform. AR TER -

MERetsEREERART/ T _NEFR 15
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2024

T AR

MAJOR EVENTS OF THE COMPANY IN 2024:

On 19 March, Landsea Green Life launched the 2024 project manager
special training, focusing on core topics such as “work requirements,
performance assessment, team management and risk prevention” to
comprehensively enhance the work efficiency and business acumen
of project managers. This aims to cultivate a core middle management
team with a service spirit, business awareness and practical capabilities,
injecting new momentum into the steady development of Landsea
Green Life.

16 Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2024
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2024
“EMFERFRERE

On 29 April, Landsea Green Life released the “2023 Environmental,
Social and Governance Report’, upholding the noble mission
of “Leading Life Services, Creating a Better Future Together”, and is
steadfastly committed to actively promoting the implementation of
the national “30 - 60" dual carbon goals, exploring paths for service
enhancement, and working with owners to build green and beautiful
communities.

4A298 - BAFREETEEM(2023FER/IE -
HERERRE)  FR[SIBEERY - Hal
FRRINE @ - RET 6 TR B # EH
K[30-60] BB ZEMEMEE  FEREREA
BERTE  BFEEIHEZE  ZFOHE -

AREEEERBEERAR/ T _NFFR 17




MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2024

T AR

DHMNERR LERTEE

Ny ra@am
5 o 83

On 24 to 25 May, Landsea Green Life, together with its wholly-owned
subsidiary Xindi Ruiyi Property, held the sixth “Marathon Vertical
Run” event at Hefei Xindi Center, the landmark building in Hefei.
Over two consecutive days, a total of 186 participants braved the heat
wave exceeding 30T to climb the highest peak in Hefei. Participants
challenged their cardiovascular limits within the 51-story, 215-meter-high
skyscraper, with each step upward embodying the green belief in a low-
carbon lifestyle.

18 Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2024
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES IN 2024
= miﬁ%ﬂagﬁk%%&

On 8 July, on the occasion of the third anniversary of its listing, Landsea
Green Life actively fulfilled its social responsibility by traveling 2,700
kilometers to conduct a field visit to Landsea Hope Elementary School in
Labu Township, Yushu, Qinghai, located at an altitude of 3,800 meters.
By conducting an in-depth survey of the current situation of school
construction and the needs of teachers and students, on 21 August,
334 sets of customized down jackets were donated to the school
(covering 100% of teachers and students), marking the first high-standard
cold-resistant school uniform donation since the school’s establishment.
Meanwhile, the donation includes 3,000 sets of learning materials
such as stationery sets and books. In addition, the Company
collaborated with Landsea Green Life residents to fulfill one-to-one
micro-wishes for 49 fifth-grade students. The public welfare initiative
received high praise from Principal Cheng Songbao for providing the
"highest quality school uniforms”, effectively alleviating the challenge of

keeping warm during winter in high-altitude regions.

7ASH WRELM=ZFAFZE BFgEELEE
BERBITHEEM - Big2,700 2 BFFEER 3,800
KB GEBNAELRFFL N BRBEELRT
o mBIRAAMBERERBMRREMMET K -

W8 A21H F‘]E&Tﬁ,\a334ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ (Bm
EBEERIO%) RRRERREESREELR
RBEEE FANBEEREEEXAESL S8
Z£3,00002EYE - AXHERAFEEEER

PRAEFHROEZBEERI1H1MOERE %
P THEARDRREREERERR]IOS
EBE  BRERT R LTHEREHE -

RS EERBERAR/ T _NFEFR 19
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CHAIRMAN'S REPORT
ESERTE

Dear Shareholders and Partners,

The year of 2024 has been a year for China’s property management industry
to face up to challenges and refine its resilience. While the global economy
is fluctuating and the industry is undergoing deep adjustments, we have
always believed that the only way to grow in resilience is to rise to the
challenges. On behalf of the Board of Landsea Green Life, | would like to
express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, employees and
partners who have been with us all the way. It is your trust and support that
has enabled us to anchor our direction amidst the headwinds and move
forward steadily in the midst of change.
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PERSEVERANCE AND BREAKTHROUGH
AMIDST INDUSTRY CHANGES

Over the past year, the industry landscape has experienced rapid
restructuring. Leading companies are building barriers through service
innovation and technological enhancements, resulting in a continuous
increase in market concentration. Policies are driving the deepening of
the “dual-carbon” goal, transforming green building and low-carbon
operations from a “trend” to a “necessity”. Customer demands are
becoming increasingly diverse, with sectors like smart communities
and home renovations experiencing significant growth. In the face
of intensifying competition and short-term market fluctuations, we
have opted to embrace long-term strategies to navigate uncertainty.
By deeply focusing on customer value and catering to quality and
personalised demands, we aim to create a comprehensive service
ecosystem that integrates “property + lifestyle + assets,” elevating our
services from “basic operations” to “life empowerment”.
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Although value-added services to non-property owners were
significantly impacted by property fluctuations, we maintained steady
overall operation by optimising our business structure and enhancing
cost control.

2024: KEY RESPONSE TO RESILIENT GROWTH
Over the past year, Landsea Green Life has embarked on an inward-
focused strategic innovation guided by the principle of “walking
towards reality and growing towards novelty”.

Pursuing quality development. In 2024, in the face of the deep
adjustment of the industry and the reshaping of the market pattern,
we have established a management model that “prioritises efficiency
and dynamic optimisation” in balancing scale and quality. We have
decisively divested from long-term loss-making projects that lack
prospects for profitability in the long run, redirecting resources
towards high-value areas. This decision reflects not only a response to
short-term operational pressure, but also a firm commitment to the
concept of “sustainable development” — only by focusing on core
competencies we can build a strong moat for long-term development.
In addition, in specific regions like Anhui Province, we have made
significant progress through service network optimisation and quality
upgrades, resulting in high customer satisfaction that ranks among
the best in the region, showcasing the effectiveness of our regional

concentration.

Diversified business synergy. Our community value-added service
innovation has introduced a “one-stop lifestyle service platform”,
leading to a significant increase in customer loyalty for services such
as home innovation and commodity retailing. This has marked a
transition in our service model from “basic operations” to a “lifestyle
ecosystem”. Among the diverse services, asset management services
stand out particularly by optimising business processes, strengthening
team development and expanding market channels. In the long-term
rental apartment sector, we have adopted various light-asset models,
including operational entrusted management and EPC+0O, covering
12 core cities. This approach has created a closed loop of “investment-
operation-service”, opening up new pathways for revitalising existing
assets. While this model remains in its cultivation phase, it lays crucial

groundwork for future growth.
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Alignment of responsibility and growth. “Landsea Friends”
hosted a total of 1,006 events throughout the year, attracting over
34,000 registered users and transforming the community from a
“living space” into an “emotional community”. In 2024, we remained
committed to positive business practices by engaging in systematic
public welfare initiatives at Labu Landsea Hope Elementary School in
Yushu, Qinghai and other areas. The “Warm Winter Programme” was
launched to provide 334 sets of insulated down jackets for students at
Labu Landsea Hope Elementary School in order to solve the problem
of keeping students warm in high-altitude areas. We also donated
over 3,000 sets of learning materials and enhanced our “one-on-one
assistance” mechanism to fulfill “micro-wishes” for 49 students through
crowdfunding. Our “Use Clothing to Create a Forest” initiative aims to
deepen our commitment to sustainability, as we recycle old clothes
to plant windbreak and sand-fixing trees in Northwest China, thereby

creating a green ecological barrier.

TWO DECADES OF BRILLIANCE, FORGING
AHEAD TOWARDS THE PEAKS

The year of 2025 marks the milestone of the 20th anniversary of
Landsea Green Life. Since our journey began in 2005 at Zijin Mountain
in Nanjing, we have embraced the spirit of “climbers”, evolving from
our first green technology community to serving 250,000 families
across 36 cities nationwide. We have always upheld the fighting spirit
of “Always on the Road”. Two decades of ascent: honoring our original

commitment and embarking on a new journey.

Driving growth through a dual focus on scale and quality. \We
will enhance our presence in high potential areas such as the Yangtze
River Delta, with the goal of achieving a compound annual growth
rate in contracted area that exceeds the industry average over the next
three years. At the same time, we will optimise our business portfolio
to increase the proportion of high-margin operations, allowing us to

attain quality-scale expansion.

Empowering green operations through technology. We will
broaden the use of smart energy platforms, aiming for 50% of
managed projects to be connected to the system by 2025, while
establishing a benchmark for “low-carbon communities” within the
industry. We will also accelerate the implementation of Internet of
Things ("loT") and Artificial Intelligence (“Al") technologies into service
scenarios, allowing technology to not only reduce costs and increase

efficiency but also enhance user experience.
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Upgrading the ecological service matrix. We will establish a
service chain of “property + lifestyle + assets” that spans the entire
lifecycle of our customers, with a focus on nurturing innovative
businesses such as home modifications for the elderly and new retail
in communities. This approach will extend service touchpoints to
every aspect of customers’ lives.

Elevating public welfare: from responsibility to ecological co-
construction. Participating in public welfare activities has been a
steadfast commitment of Landsea Green Life over the past 20 years.
In 2025, we will establish a public welfare ecological chain founded
on the principles of “systematic, sustainable and participatory”
approaches. We will enhance public welfare initiatives in education by
continuously empowering Labu Landsea Hope Elementary School in
Yushu, Qinghai, and expedite the launch of the “Qinghe Growth” one-
on-one scholarship programme.

Taking proactive measures in advance in the face of
uncertainty. We are strengthening our digital risk control system
and dynamically optimising our cost structure. Qur aim is to transform
the value-added service model for non-property owners, thereby
reducing our reliance on individual customers. We are enhancing
the talent pipeline and encouraging front-line teams to explore
service innovations, ensuring that organisational vitality becomes our

foundation for navigating through economic cycles.
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CONCLUSION: WITH OUR ORIGINAL INTENTION
ATTACHED TO METICULOUSNESS, WE CREATE
VALUE WITH WARMTH

The year of 2024 has been a crucial year for Landsea Green Life to “break
through adversity and solidify our internal capabilities”. We understand
that the essence of property services lies in caring for “people” and a
commitment to “sustainability”. In the future, we will continue to uphold our
original mission as a “green life service provider”, centering on our customers
and leveraging innovation as our driving force to lead the industry
transformation. From the foothills of Zijin Mountain to countless brightly lit
homes, and from green buildings to low-carbon living, Landsea Green Life
has, over the past twenty years, embodied the true meaning of a “climber"—
every step upward is dedicated to safeguarding the vibrant humanity
around us.

With ambition, a promising future is expected. | firmly believe that with clear
strategic determination, solid operational capabilities and the joint efforts
of our team, we will work hand in hand with shareholders, customers and
employees to create a new chapter in high-quality development!

Chairman of the Board
Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited
March 2025
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tian Ming (H BR), born on 24 January 1961, was appointed as our
Director on 1 December 2020, re-designated as our non-executive Director
and chairman of the Board on 15 January 2021 and re-designated as our
executive Director on 28 March 2024. Mr. Tian is primarily responsible for
providing guidance on the overall development of our Group. Mr. Tian is
the founder of Landsea Group, which the Company was a part of Landsea
Group until the Reorganisation. Mr. Tian has more than 20 years of extensive
experience in the fields of competitive strategy, operation management and
property investment and development. In December 2001, Mr. Tian founded
Landsea Group and has since served as its director and chief executive
officer, and began serving as the chairman of the board and an executive
director of Landsea Green Management, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 106), since July 2013. Since July 2013, Mr. Tian has also
served as the chairman of Shanghai Landleaf Architecture Technology Co.,
Ltd., the shares of which were listed on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations Co,, Ltd. (stock code: 870998) from February 2017 to March 2020.
Furthermore, Mr. Tian has served as the chairman of the board and a director
of Landsea Homes Corporation, a company listed on the NASDAQ Stock
Market (stock code: “LSEA”) from January 2021 to October 2024. He has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Chervon Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2285), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since 8
December 2021.

Mr. Tian obtained a diploma in Chinese language and literature from
Nanjing Amateur Liberal Arts University (78 5 3£ 8 XX BHK 22 in the PRC in
December 1988, completed a master's course programme in administrative
management from Nanjing University (B ;X A &) in the PRC in August
1997, and obtained an executive master's of business administration
(EMBA) from China Europe International Business School (“CEIBS”) (F BX
BIBR T 5 E67) in the PRC. In October 2019, Mr. Tian was awarded the “EY
% K 1> 2 R #2) by Ernst & Young, recognising
his entrepreneurial achievements in the field of property development.

Entrepreneur of the Year” (

Mr. Tian has also served on various committees, such as the China Real
Estate Chamber of Commerce (& B &= b E 7€) and the CEIBS Alumni

Association.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Xu (1R fIB), aged 46, was appointed as an executive Director on
15 January 2021. Mr. Wu is currently our chief executive officer and is
primarily responsible for overseeing our daily operations, community value-
added services, customer relations management, formulating our business
strategies and development plans and implementing our Board decisions.
Mr. Wu joined our Group in May 2017 and currently serves as general
manager of Nanjing Property Management, where he is responsible for

overall management.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wu was the superintendent of Xiandai Huagai
Design Ltd. ( 5ﬁ1ﬁ%§%@§§é“é+ﬁﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ@n_
of Arcplus Group PLC (ER Z R KB RN BR A A

which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600629)

a subsidiary
), the shares of

between October 2010 and April 2014. Mr. Wu was the general manager
of Architecture Design Institute and the asset operation department of
companies under Landsea Group between August 2016 and May 2017
Since May 2017, Mr. Wu has been the general manager of Landsea Green
Life Service.

Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in construction engineering from
the University of Shanghai for Science and Technology in the PRC in July
2001. Mr. Wu was awarded the Shanghai engineering planning and design
EETIRREINRERTEESRFEERIM

% 7). Mr. Wu has also served on various industry committees, such as the

professional qualification (

China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce City Renewal and Existing Building
Remodeling Branch (2B EHiER MM E MM B2ENES F)

as well as the Commercial and Tourism Real Estate Professional Committee
of the China Real Estate Association (FF B 55 Hb = 1 & P8 2 FI R B2 b 2 &

¥ZE89)
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Ms. Xue Yuan (B% %), aged 42, was appointed as an executive Director on
28 March 2024. Ms. Xue was the vice president and chief human resources
officer, and is currently the vice president and chief financial officer as well
as the person in charge of the financial management centre and operation
management centre. Prior to her joining, Ms. Xue has held various positions
under Landsea Group since February 2004, including the chief financial
officer, the assistant to general manager and the director of human resources
and administration of the Shanghai branch of Landsea Green Management,
the deputy general manager and the finance director of long-term rental
apartment division of Landsea Group and the person in charge of the
support platform for our innovative business.

Ms. Xue obtained a Bachelor's Degree in management from Nanjing Audit
University in June 2004, with the accountant certification of intermediate
level from the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security and the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Yong, aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Company since 8 June 2022. He completed his correspondence study of
Finance in Peking University in July 2003. Mr. Liu Yong served as human
resources manager of Anhui Guoxun Education Technology Co,, Ltd. (&

BB R ARE LA F]) from 2001 to 2005, recruitment and training
manager of Anhui Xinhua Group (% U 2E & [#]) from 2005 to 2006. Since
2006, he has worked in Anhui Jindadi Investment Holding Co,, Ltd. (& &
AR EER AR A 7))

resources manager from 2006 to 2014; the general manager assistant and

("Anhui Jindadi"), in which he was the human

human resources administration director from 2014 to 2015, the deputy
general manager and is also in charge of Anhui Xindi Ruiyi Property Services
Co, Ltd. (Z Bt 3 E M ERE B R A 7)) ("Xindi Ruiyi’) from 2015 to
2021. He has been the real estate sector general manager of Anhui Jindadi
since 2021 and is in charge of Xindi Ruiyi. Xindi Ruiyi is an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.
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ESMEREEAEMAN

Ms. Liu Yan, aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Company since 28 March 2024. Ms. Liu joined the Company on 28 March
2024 and is responsible for strategic human resources work. Prior to her
joining, Ms. Liu held various positions under Landsea Group since June
2008, including headquarter office director of Landsea Green Management,
assistant to the president and general manager of the human resources
administration centre, assistant to the president of Landsea Group and the
chief human resources officer and office director.

Ms. Liu obtained a Bachelor's Degree in business management from the
Nanjing Tech University in July 1998 and an EMBA Master’s Degree from
CEIBS in August 2021, with the economist certification of intermediate level
from the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lu Mei (8 #§),
executive Director on 15 June 2021. Ms. Lu is responsible for providing

aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-

independent judgement on strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
internal control and corporate governance. Ms. Lu served in various
government positions, including the department of administration and
national defence of the National Audit Office of the PRC (IR Tzt E1TH
[ &]) and the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC ( K5 EB) after
graduation from university. Since January 1999, she has assumed positions
such as the vice president of China Jinmao Holdings Group Limited (4
SR EB AR A7), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 0817) and the head of administrative affairs of GP Capital Co,, Ltd. (&

HEFREESEERARAR)

Ms. Lu obtained a Bachelor's Degree in economics from the Shanghai
GBI 48 K &) in the PRC in July
1984 and an executive master’s of business administration (EMBA) from

University of Finance and Economics (

CEIBS in the PRC in September 2005. Ms. Lu has also applied her expertise to
advise social organisations and academic institutions, serving as institution
FPEREM TR
% 4t), as well as senior consultant at the Chinese Academy of Financial
Inclusion at the Renmin University of China (7 BI A R A 2R B & H 4 &l
Bt 7E B )

supervisor at the Shanghai Lequn Social Work Service (
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Mr. Alfred Shu Shum Lai (2245 %), aged 64, possesses over 25 years of
extensive experience in financial management, leadership and stewardship.
From July 1983 to November 1991, Mr. Lai joined Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as an accountant, where he received 8 years of professional training with
his last position as Manger in Audit (Hong Kong). From November 1991
to December 1995, Mr. Lai joined Philip Morris Asia Inc. as Manager in
Financial Controls, with his last position as Regional Finance Manager.
During January 1996 to September 1998, Mr. Lai served as Director of
Finance at International Distillers & Vintners Limited and subsequently at
Brightpoint International (Asia Pacific) Pte Limited, where he was responsible
for financial management, business development, policies and procedures
establishment, and internal controls monitoring. From September 1998 to
January 2006, Mr. Lai joined Rexam PLC as Rexam Der Kwei Group Finance
Director at Rexam Der Kwei (Hong Kong) Limited, and subsequently held
the positions as Sector Finance Director at Rexam Beauty & Pharma, Business
Development Director at Rexam Plastic, Deputy Chief Executive Officer
and Managing Director at Rexam Der Kwei (Hong Kong) Limited. From
February 2006 to June 2012, Mr. Lai joined Lafarge Shui On Co. Ltd. ("LSOC")
as Chief Financial Officer and subsequently served as a board director of a
subsidiary, Sichuan Shuangma Cement Co. Ltd., a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Lai’s last position at LSOC was Vice President
of Corporate Finance. From October 2015 to June 2024, Mr. Lai has been
serving as Director of Finance at Shui On Management Limited, a corporate
management subsidiary of Shui On Land Limited, which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 272). Since June 2024, Mr. Lai has

been serving as a private consultant.

Mr. Lai obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science (Economics) in
Accounting and Finance from The London School of Economics & Political
Science, University of London, in August 1983, and a Master of Business
Administration from Heriot-Watt University in July 1994. Mr. Lai is an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
United Kingdom.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESMEREEAEMAN

Ms. Xin, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company since 12 April 2022. She received a master's degree in
applied linguistics from the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Sciences
in July 1986, and a master's degree in business administration (MBA) from
The California State University in June 1991. She obtained a doctor’s degree
in business administration from The University of California in June 1995. Ms.
Xin has been a professor of management since September 2001 at China
Europe International Business School. She served as an assistant professor of
management at The University of Southern California from September 1995
to August 1999. She served as an associate professor of management at The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology from September 1999
to August 2001
Lausanne, Switzerland from August 2006 to December 2009. Ms. Xin was

, and as a professor of management in the Faculty of IMD,

awarded the Chinese Most Cited Researchers by Elsevier, a global provider
of scientific, technical, and medical information, for consecutive years from
2014 till now. Ms. Xin is currently an independent non-executive director of
the following companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited: Fosun Tourism Group (stock code: 1992), Euro Eyes
International Eye Clinic Limited (stock code: 1846) and Kingdee International

Software Group Company Limited (stock code: 268).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESMEREEAEBMN

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LIU Chao (21 j8), aged 44, was appointed as the company secretary
and the authorised representative of Company on 15 January 2021. Mr. Liu
joined Landsea Green Life in September 2019. Prior to his joining, Mr. Liu
served successively as an audit associate and a senior audit associate at
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Ltd. Dalian Branch. Since June

11, Mr. Liu has been the senior financial manager of Dalian Haichang
hEBRARRQA), the
(BE(FPE) EEE'«A
A]) and the financial manager at Haichang Holdings (Hong Kong) Ltd. (/&
E¥ER (B AB) B R A A as well as the company secretary at Haichang
Ocean Park Holdings Ltd. (8 & /8 ¥ AR ZE R B R A 7]
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2255). Since December 2018, Mr.

Corporation Development Co.Ltd. (KX /& &
senior financial manager of Haichang (China) Co.Ltd.

, @ company

Liu has served as the board secretary of Landsea Green Management, where
he is responsible for overseeing corporate governance, compliance with
Listing Rules requirements and investor relations.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in business management from Liaoning
University in the PRC in July 2003, a master's degree in banking and finance
from Monash University in Australia in November 2006 and a master’s
degree in Business Administration (MBA) with the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in November 2020. Mr. Liu is taking the Doctor of
Business Administration (DBA) Programme at the City University of Hong
Kong currently. Mr. Liu is a certified member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (CICPA) (FR B zE & quEﬂiTi%@
member of the Association of International Accountants (

an associate
- IVN
@), a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA) and an affiliated person of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. DENG Peng (BB815), aged 47, is our vice president. Mr. Deng is primarily
responsible for overseeing the operation and management of our property
management business. Mr. Deng joined Landsea Green Life in October 2007
and has held various positions successively such as the project manager, the
internal training manager, the branch manager of southern Jiangsu area, the
general manager of the Zhejiang area branch, the general manager of the
Shenzhen area premises and the assistant to general manager and deputy
general manager of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESMEREEAEMAN

Mr. Deng graduated from the Central Party School of the Communist Party of
China (AR LA R E ) in the PRC in December 2004 with his professional
in law, and the University of International Business and Economics (¥ &b
£ E 5 K2 in the PRC in January 2020 through completing online
courses. Mr. Deng was certified as a National Property Management
Enterprise Manager (% B ¥ % B 12 1 3 432 ) by MOHURD. Mr. Deng was
certified as a Property Management Project Excellence Evaluation Expert
Committee Member (MM T X BERBFERENTEREKE by
the Hangzhou Property Management Association (A7 1 #) 3 & 2 7 &).
Mr. Deng was recognised as one of the “2019 Top 100 Property !\/\anagement
Talent in China” (2019 F B ¥ 2 432 A B 38) by a joint committee
including representatives from the China Property Management Association
(FEMEEIER D), recognising his achievements in the field of property
management.

Ms. Wang Lin (FE #f), aged 47, is appointed as the assistant to president
in November 2021. Ms. Wang is mainly responsible for our innovative
businesses such as home economics services and elderly care services in the
community.

Ms. Wang joined Landsea Group in November 2001 and has held various
positions during this period such as the deputy director of the President’s
Office of Landsea Group, the director of human resources, the assistant to
general manager of our administration centre for human resources, the
general manager of human resources and administration and the deputy
general manager of the Nanjing Real Estate Company under Landsea Group.
Ms. Wang has been the deputy general manager of the elderly care service
division of Landsea Group since May 2015.

Ms. Wang graduated from Southeast University majoring in construction
engineering in July 1998 and has obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from Nanjing University of Science and Technology.

Mr. He Xin (fi] 28), aged 52, is appointed as the assistant to president in
November 2021. Mr. He is mainly responsible for innovative businesses such
as housing (355 ) and post-investment management of joint ventures.

Previously, Mr. He has worked in Jiangsu Provincial Communications
Research Institute Co,, Ltd. (L& B X BRI 2 TR M AR A 7))
as the head of audit and Nanjing Central Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. as the
general manager. Mr. He joined Landsea Group in December 2014 and has
served as the director of the supervision and audit office of Landsea Group
and the chief supervision and audit officer of Landsea Group.

He obtained a Bachelor's Degree in financial management from East China
University of Political Science and Law in July 2015. Mr. He is also certified
as a certified public accountant by the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an accountant by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security and the Ministry of Finance and an auditor by the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security and the National Audit Office of the PRC.
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I\/\ANAGEI\/\ENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EI8 TR R A

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a growing life service provider well-established in the Yangtze
River Delta that provides diversified types of property management services
and value-added services. According to China Index Academy (CIA),
we ranked the 22nd among the “2024 Top 100 Property Management
Companies in the PRC” (2024 1 B ) ¥ AR 75 B 98 1 %) in terms of overall
strength, considering factors including respective property management
scale, operational performance, service quality and growth potential.

As of 31 December 2024, our property management services covered 36
cities, including 24 cities in the Yangtze River Delta and 12 other cities in the
PRC. As at 31 December 2024, our total GFA under management amounted
to approximately 31.68 million sq.m., of which consolidated GFA under
management amounted to approximately 28.62 million sg.m., with a total of
188 managed properties, including 164 residential properties, 16 commercial
and office buildings and involving 8 urban services, serving over 230,000
households.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Group provides diversified property management services to property
owners and residents, mainly serving residential properties with an
expanding portfolio of non-residential properties. We also offer value-added
services to non-property owners to meet their various needs for property
management. In order to provide quality property management services,
we also offer a range of community value-added services to our property
owners and residents of our managed residential properties. Our community
value-added services complement our property management services and
contribute to enhancing the satisfaction and loyalty of property owners
and residents. We also provide apartment operation and management
services to meet the needs of customers in the full cycle of leasing life and
derivative scenarios, which mainly include white-collar apartments, youth
apartments, light luxury serviced apartments, staff accommodation, ancillary
commercial, and other products and services, with an aim to enrich the
Group's diversified income and help to enhance brand value and customer
satisfaction.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AT

B E R W

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

The Group provides property owners, residents and property developers
with a range of property management services, primarily including security,
cleaning, gardening and landscaping, car parking management, and daily
repair and maintenance services. Our project portfolio included residential
properties, commercial and office buildings and urban service projects,
among which, the projects of commercial and office buildings cover office
buildings and rental apartments, whereas urban service projects cover urban
civil services and the services of public facilities, industrial parks and branches
of bank.

The Group continued to put profound efforts in the Yangtze River Delta
by adhering to multi-channel expansion for sustainable scale growth. The
Group will increase its types of project management business, actively
entering the undeveloped regional markets. As of 31 December 2024, the
total contracted GFA of the Group was approximately 38.32 million sg.m,
of which consolidated contracted GFA amounted to approximately 33.62
million sg.m.. For the Year of 2024, the new consolidated contracted GFA
was approximately 350,000 sq.m., of which, in terms of customer type, the
new contracted GFA from independent third parties accounted for 65.9% of
the total new contracted areas for 2024. In terms of property type, the new
contracted GFA from our projects of commercial and office buildings was
approximately 160,000 sq.m., accounting for approximately 45.7% of the
total new contracted areas for the year.

The Group highly focuses on the growth of the business scale, and even
more on the quality of the growth of the business scale. During 2024, we
exited or ceased to consolidate the management of 24 projects that did not
meet the expected operational efficiency, with an exit management scale of
approximately 2.75 million sq.m..
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MANAGEI\/\ENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EI8 TR R AT

The breakdown of our revenue from property management services by
property types and GFA under management of the Group is as follows:

REBRYEBRRE D
BREEAAHALT ¢

) B IR RS WA R

2024 2003
—EomE “E--F
Year-on-year
GFA under GFA under growth rate of
management Revenue  %ofrevenue  management Revenue % of revenue revenue
EE e NGl
BEER 0N N 11 EERR KA WAL ERE
Tenthousand  Tenthousand Tenthousand ~ Tenthousand
sq.m. RMB sqm. RMB
B¥nx AR¥ER ETArx  AREERL
Residential properties EEME 2,743.6 60,261.9 89.9% 28598 614102 87.3% -1.9%
Commercial and office buildings % KB F1E 1180 5,398.5 8.0% 1462 69592 99% ~22.4%
Urban services AR NATER 1,441.9 21%  NATEE 1,9458 28% -259%
Total = 2,861.6 67,1023 100.0% 30060 703152 100.0% -46%

During 2024, the Group actively and strategically developed the non-
residential market, and focused on projects such as public buildings,
industrial parks and commercial buildings. As of 31 December 2024, the
non-residential GFA under management of our commercial and office
buildings reached approximately 1.18 million sq.m.. We provide first-
class property management services to high-quality customers such as
government agencies, financial institutions, medical institutions, and internet

retail giants.

Urban services represent a new breakthrough in the property industry.
During this year, revenue from our total urban service project under
management was approximately RMB14.42 million, covering business
areas such as municipal facility cleaning and maintenance, and property
management services for green energy industry parks. This will contribute
to the construction of urban life service concept of the Group and to the
further enrichment of our business portfolio.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & am A0 AT

The breakdown of the Group's revenue from property management services
by customer type and GFA under management is as follows:

AEEZEFELE DN EEERBFKARE
EREEAAMMT

2024 2023
—E-ME “BC=F
Year-on-year
GFA under GFA under growth rate of
management Revenue  %ofrevenue  management Revenue % of revenue revenue
kg kE WARLY,
EEER WA LN BEmTE KA WAL, BRE
Tenthousand  Ten thousand Tenthousand  Tenthousand
sq.m. RMB sqm. RMB
BE¥5K ARMER E¥Ax  AREERL
Properties developed by Landsea  BR 4% &2 BB AR A 7]
Green Management Limited (RaeEE))
(‘Landsea Green RENNE
Management’) 810.3 21,670.3 32.3% 8321 21,7023 308% -0.1%
Properties developed byjoint ~~ BAGFAREBE R AR E
ventures and associates of RERERNE
Landsea Green Management 4454 9,342.1 13.9% 4613 99646 14.2% -6.2%
Properties receiving project PR eEERER
management services from iob/E
Landsea Green Management 208.5 5,322.7 7.9% 1982 39293 56% 35.5%
Properties developed by BUE=nRENNE
independent third-party 1,397.4 30,767.2 45.9% 15144 347190 494% -114%
2,8616 67,1023 100.0% 30060 703152 100.0% ~46%

During the Year of 2024, the Group continued to adhere to quality external
expansion. Among them, there were 5 new projects through market
bidding, with a new consolidated contracted GFA of approximately 350,000
sg.m. and a new consolidated GFA under management of approximately 1.31
million sg.m.. Under the prudent expansion strategy, the Group has achieved
more stable market-oriented development, with a consolidated GFA under
management obtained through independent third parties of approximately
16.06 million sg.m., accounting for approximately 56.1% of the consolidated
GFA under management.
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Residential properties
Number of projects

GFA (in ten thousand sq.m.)
Number of households

Commercial and office buildings

Number of projects
GFA (in ten thousand sq.m.)

Urban services

Number of projects
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R Mo

Adhering to a flexible and open market-oriented cooperation approach, the
Group has reached strategic cooperation with state-owned enterprises and
regional property developers, and established partner companies to handle
the property services arising from projects developed and delivered by and
from the projects to be developed by the companies by leveraging mature
service system and management standardisation strength of Landsea Green
Life. As of 2024, a total of 12 partner companies have been established,
among which 5 were consolidated into the Group, namely (1) Anju Landsea
Property Management Service (Yangzhou) Co, Ltd. * (%2 /& BA &5 ¥ 3 AR 15
(M)A BR A A)); (2) Sichuan Langshang Property Management Co., Ltd.
* (19l BArE M 2 B ER B PR A F]); 3) Anhui Xindi Zhihui City Technology
Service Co,, Ltd. * (& 3T Hb 25 2 45k ™7 BHZ AR 7 A PR 2 Al); (4) Suzhou
Langyiju Commercial Management Service Co., Ltd* (% N BA B8 /& p&5 3£
&8 R % A BR 2 B]); and (5) Landsea Property Management (Xuzhou)
Co, Ltd* (BAFF B W% B2 (R M) B BR 2 Al), while the accounts of 7
partner companies were not consolidated into that of the Group where
investment gains would be shared, namely (1) Chengdu Fulang Property
Service Co, Ltd* (B &B+&RA Y 3 AR 76 B IR 2 R); (2) Jiangsu Landsea Sea
Lake Property Management Co, Ltd* T2 BAzF /B MEEEBR A
A)); (3) Shanghai Landsea Savills Property Management Co., Ltd.* (_t /& EA
FE-ANFEETYMEETIEBR XA R]); @) Dongyang City Investment
Landsea Property Services Co,, Ltd.* (BRI IS BRI E R B R A 7))
(5) Suzhou Langtong Green Elevator Services Co,, Ltd.* (&} BA 3@ 4% &2 E 1%
iR 758 FR A A)); (6) Suzhou Gaolang Green Life Service Co., Ltd* (&R /M /=
BR&R & 4 )E RIS AR 2 A)); and (7) Suzhou Wanling Housing Leasing Co,,
Lad* (B M T2 PEFEHEHB R A F]). As of 31 December 2024, the total
number of off-balance-sheet management projects was 31 with off-balance-
sheet contracted GFA amounting to approximately 4.70 million sg.m..
By leveraging the cooperation platform, the Group and the cooperative
partners have formed complementary strengths, effectively increasing its
market share in niche areas such as high-end residential properties, parks
and municipal plazas, and at the same time expanding the scope of its brand
influence.
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MANAGEI\/\ENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group adheres to the standardisation of service quality while enhancing
the diversification of services, resulting in a steady increase in average
property management fee. In January and May 2024, the Group completed
re-certification audits of ISO50001 Energy Management System and 1SO27001
Information Security Management System, respectively, which ensured the
stable and orderly operation of the Company’s energy management and
information security management, and provided favourable support for
the Company’s energy saving and consumption reduction and information
security management. In June 2024, the Company passed the re-certification
audits of 1SO90001 Quality Management System, ISO14001 Environmental
Management System and ISO45001 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System, which ensured the orderly operation of the Company
in the fields of quality, environmental and occupational health and safety
management, and provided support for the operation of the Company’s
property services system. In January and May 2022, the Company passed
the certification of GB/T31950 Corporate Integrity Management System and
SA8000 Corporate Social Responsibility Management System, respectively,
and completed the annual supervisory audit in May and July 2024, which
provided systematic support for standardisation of corporate integrity
management and fulfillment of social responsibilities. With the expansion
of scale of property management and the enhancement of brand effect
and quality standardisation, the average property management fee per
sg.m. per month as of 31 December 2024 reached approximately RMB2.07.
In particular, the overall average property management fee per sq.m. per
month for residential properties was approximately RMB1.88, while the
overall property management fee per sq.m. per month for commercial and
office buildings was approximately RMB6.33.
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VALUE-ADDED SERVICES TO NON-PROPERTY
OWNERS

The Group offers value-added services to non-property owners for property
developers to address their various needs on property management,
including (i) sales assistance services, which primarily include visitors
reception, onsite cleaning, security, repair and maintenance services to assist
property developers in showcasing and marketing their properties at the
pre-sale stage; (ii) consultancy services and other pre-delivery services such
as cleaning, inspection, repair and maintenance services at the pre-delivery
stage and a little of repair and maintenance services after delivery; and
(iii) property agency services provided for sales and leases of properties to
property developers.

The following table sets out a breakdown of revenue from value-added
services to non-property owners by service type for the periods indicated:

FEREBERS

AEERAYEFAERREHIFZZTZERF AN
HEBYWEXEET R BRORERE  TE2EHE
MEERS BSER RE BERRERSE H
BERBRBYMEFAERRTREHEEYE © ()#F
AR BE ] AR 755 LA S EL 4t B A AR 75 - 9 4n i A B B OB
R s BERRERYE  UREMERIMELE
HRLERERRERS (N RHEERBEEMEH
BEREHMERIERS

TREHIN AT ARRRGERB O IEE T E
1B AR5 Y s AR AR

As of 2024 As of 2023
BE-_Z-—MmE BE-_T_=%

Year-on-year
growth rate of
Revenue % of revenue Revenue % of revenue revenue
WAR L
A L ON )4 LON L ON()sd BRE

Ten thousand Ten thousand

RMB RMB

ARBET AREET
Sales assistance services 5% 1,116.2 47.3% 44633 42.0% ~75.0%
Property consultancy services W5 AR 927.5 39.3% 15558 14.7% -40.4%
Property agency services MERERE 317.1 13.4% 4,599.1 433% -93.1%
Total A&t 2,360.8 100.0% 10,618.2 100.0% 77 4%
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The Group is engaged in providing perfect “first impression” to customers
by building professional sales assistance services teams. As of 31 December
2024, the Group provided sales assistance services to 17 sales offices of
Landsea Green Management and its partners and property companies
which were independent third parties, representing a decrease in income
from sales assistance services of approximately 75.0% as compared to the
Corresponding Period. The proportion of the Group's revenue from value-
added services to non-property owners has been reduced from 11.4% in
Year of 2023 to 3.0% in Year of 2024, thereby enhancing the marketisation
of our property operations and reducing our reliance on the real estate

business.

COMMUNITY VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

The Group offers a wide range of community value-added services in its
residential properties under management to meet the changing needs of its
customers and improve their quality of life. Such services primarily include (i)
home-living services, such as house renovation, housekeeping and cleaning,
and commodity retail, etc, (i) public resources management services, which
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primarily include the leasing of advertising spots and community space; EEMRENIHE = ihﬁﬁ%&fﬁiﬂ@ﬁﬁ@@{“
and (iii) asset management services in relation to the leasing and sale of K& EEIE RS ©
properties, sale of car parking spaces and transfer of use rights of car parking
spaces.
The following table sets out a breakdown of revenue from community value- "~ 2R 351 5 BT /= BR R R RIS SR AU &) 5 MO 4L [ 12 B
added services by service type for the periods indicated: PR %5 4 A\ BR 4R
As of 2024 As of 2023
BE-_S-MmE BHE_T_=F
Year-on-year
growth rate of
Revenue % of revenue Revenue % of revenue revenue
WARL
/ON [ ON 14 WA Y AfG L BRE
Ten thousand Ten thousand
RMB RMB
ARKER ARBET
Home-living services BREE RS 3,880.8 57.3% 4,789 55.5% ~19.0%
Public resources management AHBREERY
services 1,838.2 27.1% 24158 28.0% -23.9%
Asset management services BEERRH 1,056.3 15.6% 14265 16.5% -26.0%
6,775.3 100.0% 8,631.5 100.0% -20.9%
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As time goes by, the renovation and facilities of the property may become
outdated, affecting the comfort and aesthetics of living. Home renovation
services aim to address this issue by updating renovations and facilities,
bringing new vitality to the house. Property owners communicate renovation
needs to their property management service providers. In cooperation with
professional decoration companies, we provide property owners with free
on-site room measurement, design and quotation services, so that property
owners can save time, effort and money. As of the end of 2024, the total
number of housing renovation requests was 4,929, and the total number of
completed housing renovation transactions was 1,972. Meanwhile, we also
provide housekeeping and cleaning services to property owners, including
indoor cleaning, external wall cleaning, carpet cleaning and disinfection and
hourly home services. In 2024, we have introduced a service-first, pay-later
model, gaining the trust and satisfaction of our customers and effectively
enhancing the reputation among property owners.

With the development of internet technology, online shopping has become
increasingly popular. Home-living services provide commodity retail through
online platforms, meeting the needs for people to purchase daily necessities
without leaving their homes. We integrate high-quality supplier resources
to provide property owners with superior quality, cost-effective and diverse
products with guaranteed after-sales service. Such service enhances our
interaction with property owners. By collecting user shopping data, it
demonstrates that the property company better understands the needs
and consumption habits of property owners, providing a basis for service
improvement and product recommendations. As of the end of 2024, the
cumulative number of commodity retail sales orders reached 45,000.

Our public resources management services primarily focus on leasing of
both advertising spots and community space. We lease certain public areas
to third parties on behalf of property owners for advertising and other uses,
such as advertising spaces inside and outside elevators and in public spaces
in the community. We determine the lease price with the lessee, generally
taking into account the advertising theme, target location and lease term
and other factors. Revenue generated from leasing of public areas will be
mainly used to fund public repairs and maintenance, and could be used to
pay for smart community upgrade. We collect rent on behalf of the property
owners and recognise it as income based on a defined percentage of the
rent.
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Regarding our asset management business, we established a professional
sales team to carry out rental and sales business, capable of handling the
promotion, negotiation, and transaction processes of properties for property
owners. Secondly, our sales team has an in-depth understanding of the
local real estate market and can provide property owners with accurate
market analysis and pricing suggestions, helping property owners achieve
the maximum value of their properties. In addition, the property can also
provide legal consultation and contract management services to ensure
the legality and security of transactions. For owners of rental properties, we
can also be responsible for tenant screening and management, reducing
the operational burden on property owners. As of the end of 2024, we
carried out 211 transactions for our trading business and 766 transactions
for our leasing business with transaction amount of approximately RMB440
million. We continued to focus on customers’ needs so as to be closer to
the lives of property owners. Through long-term and high-quality services,
we will continue to develop the inventory market, broaden the boundaries
of life services, and strive to bring more beautiful life experience to property

owners' families.

The Group has continued to consolidate its “3-in-1" community ecosystem
model, with its community brand “Landsea Friends” as the core carrier,
deepening customer value, gathering the co-construction synergies of
multiple entities, and continuing to stimulate the endogenous dynamics of
the community, thus realising a “warm community” on all fronts. As of 31
December 2024, the number of registered users of the “Landsea Friends” APP
had reached 34,000, with the cumulative number of visits exceeding 470,000,
creating a high-frequency interactive platform for community participation.
At the same time, relying on the strategy of “systematic empowerment by
headquarters + scene-based implementation by housekeepers”, a total of 24
staff training sessions were held throughout the year, with a cumulative total
of 4,448 people trained, ensuring that all social and cultural activities were
fully launched on the “Landsea Friends” APP, making it easy for residents
to inquire about and participate in activities that suited their own needs at
any time. Throughout the year, a total of 1,006 activities were held, covering
85,000 residents of all ages from children to seniors, with the proportion
of activities planned by residents rising significantly to 34.8%, resulting in a
strong momentum of endogenous co-creative power in the community.
Meanwhile, 220 resident associations in the community remained active day
after day, enriching interactions among residents in various forms, reshaping
the close ties between people, and fostering the development of a cultural

ecology with the Group’s unique community imprint.
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APARTMENT OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT
SERVICES

At the end of 2022, Langhong (Nanjing) Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.*
(BAm (R EEEER AR, awholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, entered into an equity transfer agreement with Nanjing Langjun
Commercial Management Limited* (I REA BB X B E B R R Al),
Huge Wealth Group Limited and Beihai Langrun Commercial Management
Limited* (3t /& BA B 7 2 & 2 B R A 7) (‘Beihai Langrun’) to acquire
the entire equity interest in Beihai Langrun. Beihai Langrun and members
of its subsidiaries provide apartment operation and management services,
currently covering 12 first-and second-tier cities. The transaction was
completed on 31 March 2023. The Group realised revenue of approximately
RMB26.23 million from apartment operation and management services
in Year of 2024. Apartment operation and management services have
provided substantial new customer resources for the property management
services of the Group as well as business opportunities for the community
value-added services. With the EPC+0O model as the fulcrum of the light-
asset model, the Group is able to unlock the infinite possibilities of organic
urban renewal, and the dual-wheel drive of “property services + long-term
rental apartment operation” has facilitated the expansion of the large-scale
rental community business. The market penetration rate of the Group has
increased due to geographical overlap, laying the foundation for enriching
our operations in the market.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ESTABLISHMENT

The Group has always focused on the digital transformation of the service
and the management sides, aiming to comprehensively enhance customer
service experience and corporate operational efficiency. On the service side,
Landsea Green Life’s WeChat mini-programme has been stably launched,
significantly improving the timeliness and accuracy of information delivery,
optimising customer service processes, and enhancing service convenience
and customer satisfaction. On the management side, the Group has
successfully implemented key digitalisation projects such as revenue
integration, expense refinement, parking intelligence and Robotic Process
Automation. The implementation of these projects has effectively enhanced
the Group's systematic operational capability and laid a solid foundation for
the digital transformation of various business segments.
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Looking ahead, the Group will deepen its digital strategic layout and
promote the iterative computing upgrade of digital capabilities in all
aspects. The Group will actively embrace cutting-edge technologies such
as Al, continue to expand the boundaries of digital services, explore the
depth of services, take technological innovation as the core driving force,
and strive to build a smarter and more convenient customer service system.
By continuously improving its digital capabilities, the Group will further
consolidate its leading position in the market and lead the transformation
and development of the property industry to create greater value for society.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group actively promoted environmental, social and governance work
and published the “2023 Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Report” during this period. As a lifecycle green living service provider, the

nou

Group focuses on the three key areas of “warmth and inclusion”, “safety and
health” and “green and low-carbon” in line with the goal of “sustainable
cities and communities”, with reference to the United Nations' Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs) and the BREEAM In-Use of the Building
Research Establishment (BRE). The Company continues to improve its ESG
performance every year through the implementation of specific actions
in these areas. During this period, the Group has been deeply involved in
building green and low-carbon communities. In collaboration with the
Lishui Institute of Ecological Environment, Nanjing University, the Group
has focused on the low-carbon community management platform and the
composting pilot project, taking the Nanjing Landsea Zhongshan Green
County project as a pilot project. Carbon emission management adopts
a district-based approach to build a ranking system to promote carbon
reduction. At the same time, we are committed to our mission of exploring
sustainable community carbon neutral pathways to help achieve the “30 -
60" dual carbon goals. At present, we have successfully applied for five
related invention patents and will continue to innovate and lead the green
development in the future.
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The Group has actively fulfilled its social responsibility by launching a
targeted public welfare activity at Landsea Hope Elementary School* (A
75 2 /NE) in Labu Township, Yushu, Qinghai Province on the occasion of
the third anniversary of its listing. Through in-depth research on the current
situation of the school and the needs of teachers and students, 334 sets of
customised down school uniforms were donated to the school. This is the
first time that the school has provided high-standard cold-resistant school
uniforms since its establishment, achieving 100% coverage of all teachers
and students in the school. At the same time, 3,000 sets of learning materials
were donated. In addition, we worked with residents of the Group to realise
one-on-one micro-wish adoption for 49 fifth-grade students. This public
welfare action has been highly recognised by the school and has effectively
alleviated the problem of keeping warm during winter for students in
plateau areas. In the future, the Group will continue to pay attention to
public welfare undertakings.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately 15.3% from approximately
RMB931 million for the Year of 2023 to approximately RMB789 million for
the Year of 2024, due to (i) the lower revenue from value-added services to
non-property owners as the Group further enhanced the marketisation of
its property operation and reduced its reliance on the real estate business;
(i) the reduction in GFA under management of projects as a result of the
Group's decisive withdrawal from the projects that had been loss-making for
years and were not commensurate with the quality of the Group's services,
resulting in the lower revenue from property management services; (iii) a
lower scope of community value-added services provided by the Group
as a result of its withdrawal from the projects; and (iv) the lower revenue
from apartment operation and management services as competition in the
apartment leasing market was stimulated by the large-scale market entry
from guaranteed rentals and individual housing units in 2024.
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The following table sets out a breakdown of the Group’s revenue by business
line for the periods indicated:

TREINRIRABEAREBIZEBHBEE D
BR4A :

A I 25

2024 2023
—E_NE —E =
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR®T T % AREBTT %
Property management services Y2 E 1B R 671,023 85.1 703,152 755
Value-added services to FE S F IR ERTS
non-property owners 23,608 3.0 106,182 114
Community value-added services [ 3 (B AR 7% 67,753 8.6 86,315 9.2
Apartment operation NELEREERE
and management services 26,226 3.3 35,626 39
Total a5 788,610 100 931,275 100
Revenue from property management services decreased by approximately R EEERBEHUFZHR T _=ZFENHA

4.6% from approximately RMB703 million for the Year of 2023 to
approximately RMB671 million for the Year of 2024. Such decrease was
primarily due to the reduction in GFA under management of the Group's
projects as a result of the Group's decisive withdrawal from the projects
that had been loss-making for years and were not commensurate with the
quality of the Group's services.

Revenue from value-added services to non-property owners decreased by
approximately 77.4% from approximately RMB106 million for the Year of
2023 to approximately RMB24 million for the Year of 2024. Such decrease
was due to the decrease in revenue from sales assistance services, property
consultancy services and property agency services as the Group further
enhanced the marketisation of its property operations and reduced its
reliance on the real estate business.

Revenue from community value-added services decreased by approximately
20.9% from approximately RMB86 million for the Year of 2023 to
approximately RMB68 million for the Year of 2024. Such decrease was
primarily due to the reduction in GFA under management of projects as a
result of the Group’s decisive withdrawal from the projects that had been
loss-making for years and were not commensurate with the quality of the
Group's services, resulting in a decrease in income from home-living services,
public resources management services and asset management services.
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Revenue from apartment operation and management services decreased by
approximately 27.8% from approximately RMB36 million for the Year of 2023
to approximately RMB26 million for the Year of 2024. Such decrease was due
to the lower revenue from apartment operation and management services
as competition in the apartment leasing market was stimulated by the large-
scale market entry from guaranteed rentals and individual housing units in
2024.

COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

The Group's cost of sales and services includes employee benefit expenses,
cleaning costs, security costs, maintenance costs, utilities, greening and
gardening costs, depreciation and others.

The Group's cost of sales and services decreased by approximately 8.3%
from approximately RMB786 million for the Year of 2023 to approximately
RMB721 million for the Year of 2024. Such decrease was primarily due to
the reduction in various costs such as labour cost as a result of the Group's
decisive withdrawal from the projects that had been loss-making for years
and were not commensurate with the quality of the Group's services.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s gross profit decreased by
approximately 53.1% from approximately RMB145 million for the Year
of 2023 to approximately RMB68 million for the Year of 2024. The gross
profit margin decreased from approximately 15.6% for the Year of 2023 to
approximately 8.6% for the Year of 2024. The decrease in gross profit margin
was due to (i) the increase in staff costs of property management services;
and (i) the decline in the gross profit margins as a result of the decrease in
high gross profit revenue from sales assistance services, property agency
services and property consultancy services due to the cyclical impact of the
property industry.

OTHER INCOME

The Group's other income mainly represents government grants, additional
VAT deductibles and others. The Group’s other income decreased from
approximately RMB5 million for the Year of 2023 to approximately RMB3
million for the Year of 2024, primarily due to the decrease in government
grants as a result of the expiry of the preferential policy for additional VAT
deductibles on 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SELLING EXPENSES

The Group's selling expenses mainly represent employee benefit expenses,
business development expenses, travel expenses, office expenses and
others.

The Group's selling expenses increased by approximately 8.3% from
approximately RMB24 million for the Year of 2023 to approximately RMB26
million for the Year of 2024, primarily due to the increase in amortisation
of intangible assets arising from acquisition of a subsidiary that is Beihai
Langrun at the end of March 2023. The intangible assets arising from the
acquisition were amortised from January to December 2024, whereas the
intangible assets were only amortised from April to December 2023.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
The Group's administrative expenses mainly represent employee benefit
expenses, professional fees, travel expenses, office expenses and others.

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by approximately 21.2%
from approximately RMB113 million for the Year of 2023 to approximately
RMB89 million for the Year of 2024, primarily due to savings in staff costs.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS
(“ECL”) MODEL

The Group's impairment losses under the ECL model represents the
impairment provision made by the Group in accordance with the ECL rates
prescribed by HKFRS 9 for its trade receivables and other receivables.

For the Year of 2024, the Group's impairment loss under the ECL model was
approximately RMB172 million (2023: RMB181 million), which includes: (i) ECL
provision of approximately RMB88 million (2023: RMB145 million) against
trade receivables, and (i) ECL provision of approximately RMB84 million (2023:
RMB36 million) other receivables.
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For trade receivables and other receivables due from related parties,
which are with distinct credit risk characteristics and occurrence of credit
impairment, management evaluated the distribution of expected cash
flows under a liquidation basis scenario based on experience of historical
credit loss, business model, current situations and forecasts of future
conditions of contract counterparties, and made corresponding provision
for ECL according to ECL rate under the liquidation basis scenario. ECL was

recognised on an individual basis.

Management engaged an independent qualified valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"), to assist in the assessment
of the ECL for trade receivables and other receivables from related parties.
The key assumptions adopted in the valuation of ECL for trade receivables
and other receivables from related parties are default rate (%), haircuts
on the balance sheet assets (%), recovery rate (%) and ECL rate (%).In
estimating the value of the default rate, a default probability of 100% is
assumed, as the majority of the related parties are engaged in the property
development industry in the PRC and recoverability of such balances from
related parties is low due to the ongoing liquidity crunch faced by Chinese
real estate developers. In estimating the expected recovery rate, JLL applied
a liquidation scenario to assess the recoverability (or in other words, the
expected loss rate) of these receivables as at 31 December 2024.

For trade receivables and other receivables due from third parties, which
are without distinct credit risk characteristics and without occurrence of
credit impairment, ECL was recognised on both individual and collective
basis. For trade receivables and other receivables arising from low-quality
projects which the Group no longer provides services, provision for ECL
is measured at a probability-weighted amount that reflects the possibility
that a credit loss occurring, and time value of money with consideration of
past settlement patterns, current conditions of the debtors and forward-
looking macro-economic information. For the remaining trade receivables
and other receivables arising from on-going properties projects, they have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. Provision for ECL is
estimated based on historical data, including the past settlement profile and
incurred credit losses in observed periods, and existing market conditions

with adjustment to reflect forward looking factors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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IMPAIRMENT LOSSES FOR GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

The Group reviews goodwill impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment and
makes provision for impairment on the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit in which goodwill is located to the extent that it exceed
recoverable amount.

According to the assessment results of the valuer, JLL regarding the
impairment of goodwill. The Group recorded impairment losses for goodwill
and intangible assets of approximately RMB140 million for the Year of 2024
(2023: nil), of which the impairment loss on goodwill was approximately
RMB123 million (2023: nil), and the impairment on intangible assets was
approximately RMB17 million (2023: nil).

The impairment of goodwill and intangible assets for the year ended 31
December 2024 was mainly attributable to Beihai Langrun Commercial
Management Limited (“Beihai Langrun”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company acquired on 31 March 2023, which is identified as an individual
CGU according to HKAS36.6.

Management assessed the impairment of goodwill by determining the
recoverable amounts of the Beihai Langrun CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated, based on the higher of the value-in-use (“VIU”") calculation and
fair value less costs of disposal. The VIU calculation used discounted cash
flow forecasts based on financial budgets approved by management. The
recoverable amounts of Beihai Langrun CGU were determined using a VIU
calculation, which utilises cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period. Management engaged an independent qualified
valuer, JLL, to assist in the goodwill impairment assessment. The valuation
method used is the income approach.
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I\/\ANAGEI\/\ENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The key assumptions applied in the valuation of the VIU calculation for Beihai
Langrun CGU mainly include the annual revenue growth rate, gross profit
margin, long-term growth rate, and pre-tax discount rate. The value of the
key assumptions adopted in the valuation of VIU of Beihai Langrun CGU is as

follows:
Annual
revenue
growth rate
FERE
BRE
Beihai Langrun CGU il:/E}EH;Fﬁ HEeEELEN
31 December 2024 —ZE U -18.0%-0.0%
+=ZA=+—H
31 December 2023 —E=F 2.0%-3.7%
+=—A=+—8

AL EAEREEABUNEABEAERE
ANIZRRIZCEFERREREK EMEX
RHRERRBAMER - FEILBRABERSESE

BUumMEREEFRANEIERRENAT

Gross Long-term Pre-tax
profit margin growth discount
(% of revenue) rate rate
ER R
(E W=

BAL) REERER BiAl AR R

65.9%-69.1% 2.0% 15.4%

67.6%-69.6% 2.2% 15.5%

(@)  For the annual revenue growth rate of the Beihai Lamgrun CGU, it
dropped from 2.0%-3.7% in the 2023 VIU calculation to -18.0%-0.0%
in the 2024 VIU calculation, mainly due to the following reasons:

()  The monopoly of leading companies is intensifying, with
companies such as Vanke Boya Apartment and Longfor Crown
Apartment are rapidly expanding in 2024, Beihai Langrun facing
market share pressure from these leading companies; and

(i) The government’s large-scale promotion of rental housing
entering the market, along with an increase in various supply
products and personal housing sources, is leading to a decrease
in the rental costs and prices of market-oriented long-term
rental apartments. Meanwhile, Beihai Langrun charges a
fixed-rate management fee, which will decrease the revenue of
Beihai Langru accordingly.
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The management of the Company expects this adverse impact to continue
in next year, implicating in an annual revenue growth rate of -18% in 2025,
and to remain constant from 2026 to 2029 as business operations and
financial performance are expected to stabilize following the significant
decline in revenue in 2025 for this CGU.

Based on the results of the assessment, management compared the
carrying amount of the Beihai Langrun CGU with its VIU and recognised
an impairment loss when the carrying amount exceeded the VIU. An
impairment of goodwill amounted at RMB120,291,000 was recognised,
the remaining impairment of RMB16,950,000 has been allocated to the
only remaining non-financial asset in the Beihai Langrun CGU, which is the
intangible assets with a finite useful life.

FINANCE INCOME — NET
The Group's net finance income represents various interest expenses and
interest income from bank deposits.

The Group’s net finance income decreased from net income of
approximately RMB1.37 million for the Year of 2023 to net income of
approximately RMB1.13 million for the Year of 2024, primarily due to a

decrease in interest income.

SHARE OF NET (LOSS)/PROFIT OF ASSOCIATES

The Group's share of net (loss)/profit of associates decreased from profit of
approximately RMBO0.29 million for the Year of 2023 to loss of approximately
RMBO0.93 million for the Year of 2024, primarily due to loss from an associate

Dongyan City Investment Landsea Property Services Co., Ltd* (B2 [5 T 35 1%
AT ERG AR A 7))

INCOME TAX CREDIT

The Group’s income tax refers to PRC enterprises income tax at a tax rate of
25% on taxable profits of our subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and the
land appreciation taxes required in accordance with the relevant tax laws
and regulations in the PRC. Some subsidiaries of the Group are qualified
as small and micro businesses and enjoy preferential tax rate of 5% for the
current period. In addition, certain subsidiaries engaged in encouragement-
type industries in the western region of the PRC are entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 9% in accordance with the regulations.

The Group's income tax credit increased by approximately 37.5% from
approximately RMB32 million for the Year of 2023 to approximately RMB44
million for the Year of 2024, primarily attributable to the widening of the loss
before tax for the period.
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I\/\ANAGEI\/\ENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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LOSS FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's loss for the year increased by
approximately 136.3% from approximately RMB135 million for the Year of
2023 to approximately RMB319 million for the Year of 2024, mainly due to
the impairment losses of approximately RMB172 million under the expected
credit loss model and the impairment losses of approximately RMB140
million for goodwill and intangible assets for the year.

LIQUIDITY, RESERVES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s current assets amounted to
approximately RMB551 million, representing a decrease of approximately
20.3% as compared with approximately RMB691 million as at 31 December
2023.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's cash and cash equivalents,
denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollar and United States dollar,
amounted to approximately RMB294 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 11.7% as compared with approximately RMB333 million
as at 31 December 2023, mainly due to the net cash outflow used in
operating activities of approximately RMB28 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 123.3% as compared with the net cash inflow of
approximately RMB120 million for the Corresponding Period, the net cash
inflow from financing activities of approximately RMB14 million, representing
an increase of approximately 566.7% as compared with the net cash outflow
of approximately RMB3 million for the Corresponding Period, and the net
cash outflow from investing activities of approximately RMB25 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 82.4% as compared with the
net cash outflow of approximately RMB142 million for the Corresponding
Period. As at 31 December 2024, the Group's total deficit amounted to
approximately RMB55 million, representing a decrease of approximately
120.8% from the Group's total equity of approximately RMB265 million as at
31 December 2023. The decrease was mainly due to the loss for the year.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group's trade receivables primarily consist of receivables for our
property management services and community value-added services from
our customers.

The trade receivables of the Group as at 31 December 2024 were
approximately RMB176 million, representing a decrease of approximately
18.1% from approximately RMB215 million as at 31 December 2023. The
decrease in trade receivables was primarily due to the increase in provision
for impairment of accounts receivables.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's prepayments, deposits and other
receivables amounted to approximately RMB67 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 51.4% as compared with approximately RMB138
million as at 31 December 2023. It was primarily due to the increase in
provision for impairment of other accounts receivables.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's trade and other payables amounted
to approximately RMB605 million, representing an increase of approximately
7.3% as compared with approximately RMB564 million as at 31 December
2023. It was primarily due to the increase in supplier payment terms.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing schedules as
stipulated in the property management agreements. Certain payments are
usually received in advance of the performance under the contracts which
are mainly from property management services.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s contract liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB252 million, representing an increase of approximately
19.4% as compared with approximately RMB211 million as at 31 December
2023. This was primarily due to the increase in advance property charges

received from owners.

BORROWINGS
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no bank borrowings.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not hold any significant

investment during the Year of 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

fl.

On 8 March 2024, Nanjing Landsea Property Management Co., Ltd.*
(FA R BB+ % & I A R A 7) (‘Nanjing Landsea Property’)
and Wuxi Huilin Yiju Real Estate Brokerage Co,, Ltd* (E &5 [ 4 52 5
5 = & 42 /5 BR A &]) ("Wuxi Huilin Yiju"), both being indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered into a property
transfer agreement (the “Property Transfer Agreement’) with (i)
Shanghai Langxin Property Development Limited* (_t & BA {5 F= ith &
2 B BR 2 A]); (i) Suzhou branch of Shanghai Landsea Investment
Management Limited* (_E/8BAFFIR & BB AR A A& M 2 A 7); (i)
Shanghai Langming Property Development Limited* (= /& BA £4 55 Hb
ERE AR A R]); (iv) Shanghai Langxu Enterprise Management Co,
Ltd* (L /EBAMDE B E B R A F); and (v) Shanghai Kunhong Co,,
Ltd* (/B EZEEZEABR A F]) (‘Shanghai Kunhong') (collectively,
the “Members of Landsea Green Management Group’), pursuant
to which Shanghai Kunhong agreed to transfer the target property,
comprising 2 office premises and 6 car parking spaces located at the
Landsea Peak in Cloud Project developed and built by Landsea Green
Management Group in Putuo District, Shanghai, the PRC, to Nanjing
Landsea Property to settle the corresponding outstanding amounts
owed by the Members of Landsea Green Management Group to
Nanjing Landsea Property and Wuxi Huilin Yiju at a consideration of
RMB9,071,671 (the “Property Transfer”).

Members of Landsea Green Management Group are indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Landsea Green Management. Landsea Green
Management was directly and indirectly held as to 58.52% by Mr. Tian
at the time of the Property Transfer. As Landsea Green Management
was an associate of Mr. Tian, it was a connected person of the
Company. The Property Transfer Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted a connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Property
Transfer was completed on 24 July 2024.

For further information, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 8 March 2024.

On 16 December 2022, Langhong (Nanjing) Enterprise Management Co,,
Ltd.* (BA 7% (F3 ;) b % & 32 A R 2 7]) (‘Langhong (Nanjing)’, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), Nanjing Langjun Commercial
Management Limited* (8 I BA & i £ & 2 5 IR 2 &) (‘Nanjing
Langjun’), Huge Wealth Group Limited (5 BT & B A R A 7)) (‘Huge
Wealth") and Beihai Langrun, among others, entered into an equity
transfer agreement (as amended), pursuant to which Langhong (Nanjing)
agreed to acquire, and Nanjing Langjun and Huge Wealth agreed to sell
the entire equity interest in Beihai Langrun (the “2022 Acquisition”). The
2022 Acquisition was completed on 31 March 2023.

EARBREE

1.

R-ZZE-_WNF=ANB ERAFVEER
BERAR (ARBFUER]) MEHEMNER
FHELLER AR ((EREEMER]) 95
ARBIREE2ENBAR) 8() LERAER
ERZEBRAA: () LEAFREEEAR
REEMD DA (i) EEAEEERESR
[RAT: (v) LBAMGBREEEARRAA] &V
PERZEXARAR(LBRER]) (5[ &
EHRREEEREREARD T UNEE
Ea ((MEERBE]) Bt EERE
RAERAERBAFNEERERSYE (BRLR
TELEMEREMNAAFREEESEF
HEKHAFRIERB M 2ERAEER6E
BEA) NEEZERFREEEEEKE
NAENARAFYENEGESERENY
BRF REBARE07167T ((NES
&) -

ZEPIFHEEEEEKE QT BB K
CEENEEE2ENBRAR RYEEE
B AAEEELRBEEEEFHECEED
5852% M c MR EEREABEED
BMBA REARXRANBEEAL - RIEL
MHABE4AE - MEEE D REBE T EHE
THRSEBRARBNEERS - WEEE
ER_ZE_WELA-FMEBERTK -

BREE—FER BLHEARQRRBHAE=-Z
“ME=ZANBHRE -

RZZE_—_F+=-_A+8 BB @ER) L
XEEARAR (BB (FER)] - AAQAW
E2EWEBRAR)  mAABAEEEERAT
((EREEE))  EZHEEEARAE (ERE])
MALERAE (e E) sl R EE R E (K
183]) - Bt B (B R) AEWE - mEx
BRER MORIE R E K S0/ 23R ([ =
E__FIWEEE|) T —_FWESFIE
Ro-E-=F=F=+—H=EK "

MEReEsEREERAR/ T _NEFR 63



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E RO

64

Nanjing Langjun has undertaken to Langhong (Nanjing) that the
audited net profit after tax of Beihai Langrun in 2023 after deducting
non-recurring profits and losses shall not be less than RMB26,600,000
(the “2023 Guaranteed Profit’), according to the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards.

The audited net profit after tax of Beihai Langrun after deducting non-
recurring profits and losses, if any, for the year ended 31 December
2023 was RMB29,402,430.20, exceeding the 2023 Guaranteed Profit.

For further information, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 11 July 2024.

On December 2021, Southern Land International Company Limited
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the “Purchaser”), Lucky
Front Investments Limited (the “Seller”), Dream Seeker Company
Limited (‘Dream Seeker”) and Xindi Ruiyi Property Services Co., Ltd.*
(“Xindi Ruiyi") entered into a share transfer agreement, pursuant to
which the Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire, and the Seller
conditionally agreed to sell 100% of the equity interest in Dream
Seeker (the “2021 Acquisition”). The 2021 Acquisition was completed
on 30 May 2022.

The Seller has undertaken to the Purchaser that Xindi Ruiyi shall meet
performance commitments in respect of revenue and profit for the
three-year period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024 (the
“Performance Commitment Period"). If Xindi Ruiyi fails to achieve
the performance commitments during the Performance Commitment
Period, the Seller or the Seller's domestic designated person shall
pay the Purchaser or the Purchaser’'s domestic designated person
an amount calculated as follows (the “Compensation Amount”):
Compensation Amount = Adjusted Consideration x (1 + 4%) x (1 —
B/A). In which: A = the cumulative amount of the audited net profit
that Xindi Ruiyi would achieve during the Performance Commitment
Period in accordance with the performance commitments,
calculated at a compound annual growth rate of 15%; and B = the
cumulative amount of the audited net profit that Xindi Ruiyi has
actually achieved during the Performance Commitment Period. If the
Compensation Amount calculated according to the above formula is
less than or equals to zero, the Seller shall not be required to pay any
Compensation Amount. For further information, please refer to the

announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2021.
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During the Performance Commitment Period, the cumulative amount
of the audited net profit of Xindi Ruiyi was RMB36,238,300, which
was higher than the cumulative amount of the audited net profit of
RMB34,163,300 that Xindi Ruiyi had committed to achieve during
the Performance Commitment Period. The Compensation Amount
calculated according to the above formula was less than zero and the
Seller was not required to pay any Compensation Amount.

Save as disclosed in this report, during the Year of 2024, the Company
did not conduct any material acquisitions or disposals of assets,
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 3,029 employees (as
at 31 December 2023: 3,346). The Group offers employees competitive
remuneration packages that include fees, salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind, bonuses and pension scheme contribution and social welfare. The
Group contributes to social insurance for its employees, including medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, retirement insurance, maternity
insurance, unemployment insurance and housing funds. The Group puts
ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and development resources
to the employees so that they can keep abreast of the latest development
of the market and the industry and, at the same time, improve their
performance and self-fulfillment in their positions.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no pledge of assets.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group will continue to focus on its existing property management
services and living community value-added services. Save as disclosed in
the prospectus of the Company dated 25 June 2021 (the “Prospectus”), no

concrete plan for future investment is in place as at the date of this report.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio, defined as bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities and
amounts due to related parties divided by total equity and multiplied by
100%, was -34.84% as at 31 December 2024.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 8 July
2021 (the “Listing Date") by way of global offering, 100,000,000 shares

were issued, and the total of 1

10,765,000 shares were issued after the over-

allotment options were partially exercised, raising the total net proceeds (after

deducting underwriting commissions and other related listing expenses) of

approximately HK$288.9 million.

The analysis on the utilisation of the net proceeds from the Listing Date to

31 December 2024 is as follows:

Use

i}

Expanding our business SEERAEHRE
through various channels

Continuing toenhance ouroperating ~ EERFABEARLR
capabilty quided by users and NEEEBMNEEY
driven by data

Continuing to enrich FEEELEERE
value-added services

Continuingtoincentivise, retainand ~~ FSEHE - BERBEAL
fecruit talents i order to enhance IMEANERER
our human resources management

Working capital EEES

66

Percentage of the

net proceeds as stated

in the Prospectus and allocation

of the net proceeds after taking

into account the

partial exercise of the

over-allotment option on

30 July 2021
RRERBSIFEHE
FRARERRRE
RZBZ-5tA=1H
BATEEFERETE

ARMEI
%of total
amount HKS Million
(kL]

A7l BEET
56.8% 164.1
15.3% 447
10.2% 295

7.7% 222

10.0% 289
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FINANCIAL RISKS
The Group is exposed to risks arising from its financial instruments such as
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

INTEREST RATE RISK
The Group has not used any financial derivatives to hedge its interest rate
risk. All bank interests were received at fixed rates.

CREDIT RISK

The Group's financial instruments have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics such as instrument types and credit risk ratings
for the purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk and
impairment measurement.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, amounts due from related parties and other receivables
included in the statement of financial position represent the Group’s

maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

As at 31 December 2024, all cash and cash equivalents were deposited in

high-credit-quality financial institutions without significant credit risk.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

As all of the Group's businesses were conducted in the PRC, the revenue,
profit and loss for the Year of 2024 were denominated in Renminbi. The
major foreign currency source for the Group was the fundraising following
the successful listing on the Stock Exchange during the period, all of which
were in Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have
significant foreign currency exposure from its operations. The Group has not
used any financial derivatives to hedge its foreign exchange risk. The Group
will closely monitor its foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any outstanding
guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

LIABILITIES TO ASSETS RATIO

Liabilities to assets ratio is calculated based on our total liabilities as at the
end of the relevant period divided by our total assets as at the end of such
period. As at 31 December 2024, our liabilities to assets ratio was 106.6% (31
December 2023: 75.6%).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance to protect the Shareholders’ overall interests.

The Company has adopted and applied the code provisions under the CG
Code as its own corporate governance code. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
under Part 2 of the CG Code during FY2024.

The Board should establish the Company’s purpose, value and strategy and
satisfy itself that they are aligned with its culture.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, The Board consists of three executive Directors
(namely Mr. Tian Ming, Mr. Wu Xu and Ms. Xue Yuan respectively), two
non-executive Directors (namely Mr. Liu Yong and Ms. Liu Yan) and three
independent non-executive Directors (namely Ms. Lu Mei, Mr. Alfred Shu
Shum Lai and Ms. Katherine Rong Xin respectively). An updated list of
Directors and their roles and functions is posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company, respectively. Their names and biographical
details are set out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
section of this report. The Board has the overall management of the
Company'’s operations, as well as the responsibility for overseeing and
formulating the overall business strategy.

There is no financial, business, family and other material or relevant
relationship among the respective Directors, the chairman and the general

manager of the Company.

In FY2024, the Board has consistently complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules regarding the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors and at least one independent non-executive
Director who shall have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
and financial management expertise. The three independent non-executive
Directors account for one-third of the Board, which meets the requirements
of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, that is, the independent non-executive
Directors of the listed issuer must represent at least one-third of the Board.
The Board believes that the Board has sufficient independence to safeguard
the interests of the Shareholders.
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DIRECTOR ATTENDANCE RECORD

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy,
operations and financial performance of the Group. Directors can participate
in person or through electronic communication. The Board holds at least
four meetings per year at a frequency of approximately once a quarter, and
will arrange ad hoc meetings if necessary. The date of each meeting is set in
advance so that the Directors can attend the meeting in person.

For the Year of 2024, the attendance records of the Directors at Board
meetings, meetings of special committees under the Board and general
meeting are as follows:

EEHhFETE
EFREMEE AR AR OB EAR -
BERMBER - EFANRESI - b ALNBB
BTBANRSM - EERRETEN R §F
BAESMATHER NEREREHERE
%o BREMERNAMEELRE  UEEFH
HHEHS -

—ToNF CBEEHFEERERE EERERH
RERERULBRRAGHHFLENT

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board " Committee @ Committee © Committee Meeting
=R ENZER FMZES REZES RRAE
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) HAXE(EFR) 24 N/AT N/AT N/AT P 22
Mr. Wu Xu RBEE 4/4 N/A i F NATNER N/ATNE A 22
Ms. Xue Yuan BEAT 1 N/AT i F N/AT i F N/ATN3E R 22
Ms. Zhou Qin BE L 3/3 NATNER 11 1/1 N/A i A
Mr. Liu Chao ey 3/3 N/AT i F N/AZRE R N/ATE R N/ATE B
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Liu Yong Liu Yong %4 4/4 N/A i A N/A i A N/A i A 22
Ms. Liu Yan ElF 3o Vi N/AT i F N/AT 38 R N/AT3E R 22
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Ms. Lu Mei Bigut 4/4 22 N/A i A 1/1 22
Mr. Alfred Shu Shumn Lai RENREE 11 11 N/A i A N/AT i A 0/1
Ms. Katherine Rong Xin Katherine Rong Xin 20t 4/4 2/2 1/ i 2/2
Dr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen BREXET 3/3 N 11 N/AT 0/1
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Mr. Tian Ming were absent from 2 of the Board meetings as he were required to
abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions considered at those meetings due to
his material interests in the transactions contemplated therein;

Ms. Xue Yuan was appointed on 28 March 2024, and 1 Board meeting was held
during her tenure of office in 2024;

Ms. Liu Yan was appointed on 28 March 2024, and 1 Board meeting was held during
her tenure of office in 2024;

Mr. Alfred Shu Shum Lai was appointed on 21 June 2024, and 1 Board meeting was
held during his tenure of office in 2024;

Ms. Zhou Qin resigned on 28 March 2024, and 3 Board meetings were held during
her tenure of office in 2024;

Mr. Liu Chao resigned on 28 March 2024, and 3 Board meetings were held during his
tenure of office in 2024; and

Dr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen resigned on 21 June 2024, and 3 Board meetings were
held during his tenure of office in 2024.

During the Year of 2024, the Audit Committee held two meetings.

Dr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen ceased to be the chairperson of Audit Committee on 21
June 2024, and one Audit Committee meeting was held during his tenure of Audit
Committee in 2024; and

Mr. Alfred Shu Shum Lai was appointed as the chairperson of Audit Committee on
21 June 2024, and one Audit Committee meeting was held during his tenure of
office in 2024.

During the Year of 2024, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting.

Ms. Zhou Qin ceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee on 28 March
2024, and one Remuneration Committee meeting was held during her tenure of
office in 2024;

Dr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen ceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee
on 21 June 2024, and one Remuneration Committee meeting was held during his
tenure of office in 2024; and

Mr. Alfred Shu Shum Lai was appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 21 June 2024, and no Remuneration Committee meeting was held
during his tenure of office in 2024.
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4) During the Year of 2024, the Nomination Committee held one meeting.
Ms. Zhou Qin ceased to be a member of Nomination Committee on 28 March 2024,
and one Nomination Committee meeting was held during her tenure of office in
2024; and
Ms. Liu Yan was appointed as a member of Nomination Committee on 28 March
2024, and no Nomination Committee meeting was held during her tenure of office
in 2024.

(5) Ms. Xue Yuan was appointed on 28 March 2024, and 2 general meetings were held
during her tenure of office in 2024;
Ms. Liu Yan was appointed on 28 March 2024, and 2 general meetings were held
during her tenure of office in 2024;
Mr. Alfred Shu Shum Lai was appointed on 21 June 2024, and 1 general meeting was
held during his tenure of office in 2024;
Ms. Zhou Qin resigned on 28 March 2024, and no general meeting was held during
her tenure of office in 2024;
Mr. Liu Chao resigned on 28 March 2024, and no general meeting was held during
his tenure of office in 2024; and
Dr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen resigned on 21 June 2024, and 1 general meeting was
held during his tenure of office in 2024.

DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing all major matters of the Company,

including formulating and approving all policy matters, overall strategy,

internal control and risk management systems, and supervising the duty

performance of senior management. Directors shall make objective decisions

based on the Company’s overall interests.

The liability insurance of the Directors and senior management of the

Company is maintained by the Company to prevent and cover certain legal

liabilities that may arise in the course of performing their duties.
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BOARD AUTHORISATION

The management consisting of executive Directors and other senior
management is authorised to implement the strategies and guidelines
approved by the Board from time to time and is responsible for the day-
to-day management and operations of the Group. The executive Directors
and senior executives meet regularly to review the performance of the
Group's overall business, coordinate overall resources, and make financial
and operating decisions. The Board also gives clear instructions on its
management powers (including circumstances where the management
should report to it) and will regularly review the authorisation arrangements
to ensure that they are suitable for the needs of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the Group's
consolidated financial statements in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also acknowledge their
responsibilities to ensure the timely release of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The Directors are not aware of any significant
uncertainties related to events or conditions, and these uncertainties may
have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Therefore, the Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in accordance with the going concern standard.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Independent non-executive Directors play an important role in the Board
by virtue of their independent judgments, and their views are of great
significance in the decision of the Board. The functions of independent non-
executive Directors include holding impartial views and judgments on such
issues as the Company’s strategy, performance and control; and reviewing
the Company’s performance and monitoring performance reports.

All independent non-executive Directors have extensive academic,
professional, industry knowledge and management experience, and have
made positive contributions to the Company's development by providing
professional advice to the Board.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors has been
assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules, and the Company
has received from each independent non-executive Director an annual
written confirmation of his/her independence in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all independent non-
executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

DIRECTOR TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
customised training at the time of appointment. Subsequently, the Directors
will obtain the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements, as well as the Group's business development,
and they will be encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to expand their knowledge and skills.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development by
attending seminars or in-house briefing relating to their role as Director/
taking part in business-related training/acting as speaker for seminars and
refreshed their knowledge and skills and provided to the Company a record
of training they received for the financial year ended 31 December 2024.
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The following table sets forth the training received by the existing Directors

of the Company during the year:

TREIARBREEENFARZNIFI

Reading

materials

related to

regulation and

governance

Continuing (newspaper,

professional publication or

Directors training information)

BEERR

ERMNBEEME

(34K - FI¥I=R

=3 BEEEEZI &)

Mr. Tian Ming HMREA YesH Yes B

Mr. Wu Xu RIBSEE YesH Yes &

Ms. Xue Yuan (appointed on 28 March 2024) BEZT(R_Z_F YesH YesH
—AZ+TNBEZE)

Ms. Zhou Qin (resigned on 28 March 2024) BE L+ (R _F Yes B Yes B

=HAZ+N\BE&T)
Mr. Liu Chao (resigned on 28 March 2024) BB E (R —meE Yes G Yes &
ZAZ+N\BHED)

Mr. Liu Yong Liu Yong &4 Yes H YesH

Mes. Liu Yan (appointed on 28 March 2024) B+ (RN _ZE_OF Yes G Yes &
A+t NHEZE)

Ms. Lu Mei Bigz+t YesH Yes B

Mr. Alfred Shu Shum Lai RENRLEE(R-_ZE_UFE Yes Yes B
(appointed on 21 June 2024) NAZ+—HEZME)

Ms. Katherine Rong Xin Katherine Rong Xin 22 = Yes & Yes B

Dr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen PREXIE L (R _mF YesH Yes B

(resigned on 21 June 2024)

NAZ+—BEHE)

HRREeEERBEARIR/ —F _MFEFH
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Tian Ming is the Chairman and Mr. Wu Xu is the chief
executive officer of the Company. The Company considered that the division
of the responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer is
clearly established.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The Company entered into a service contract with each of the executive
Directors for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. The
Company entered into an appointment letter with each of the non-executive
Director and the independent non-executive Directors for a term of three
years. Each Director shall be subject to the retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

At any time before the expiration of the Director’s term, the Shareholders
may dismiss any Director by an ordinary resolution at any general meeting
convened and held in accordance with the Articles of Association, despite
the contrary in the Articles of Association or the existence of any agreement
reached between the Company and the Director (but without prejudice to
any claim for damages under that agreement).

Under article 84 of the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. According to CG Code B.2.2, every director, including those appointed
for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wu Xu, Ms. Lu

Mei and Ms. Katherine Rong Xin shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

76 Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2024

EERETHAR
BEREEATAZTABIECL F EFRA
TRARZACEARS L TEH— ARBR
- BREEAEER  RIBLEARTARITHE
#oARARA  EEWMHTEERATRARZ
BEEH % -

ZE EBRRBRES

ARAREEAITESZEURBEHN B LHHEE
EAH=F AR DHEIFNTES MIBILIEH
TERITYZERT  RP=F - FEFEARERN
AEEBERARBERTYERET-

EESTHERZANERRRE - RRFTAERE
ARAERABRARBITNEIAKRRAE L L&
BRZRSTABERL2ES BEHEHKEERMAL P
BEHERREXFEARBEAZEST CRERNE
i (B TEERBEZ &R DA ETARERE

BR) -

REABERAAUE4G EEERRABFRE
b ER=N0Z-MNES(RWARLF=Q)HE
FAREOENIR =02 —HAR) BRESE
HBREERELB=FERRBFARE LEE
—R-BRBEEEARTAEB2L2MG 8LEF (R
REEEENZEE) RELB_FHRESE K-

KB DR 2 B ERZABIZE8401) i - RIBELAE -
B 22 £ N Katherine Rong Xin 22 = #5 1A F& f& A% 3R R
FRAELHESR AFAERUESBEREMT-



EOEREORE RGOV RINANCSREROR

/\\I//‘v/—\-\

FPxRE #&m

Pursuant to Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules, each of the Directors appointed
during FY2024 and as at the date of this report attended a training covering
the requirements under the Listing Rules as a Director and the possible
consequences of making a false declaration or giving false information to
the Stock Exchange. Details of the training received by the relevant Directors

are as follows:

Name of Directors Date of appointment

E=nSR ZEBH

BRI £ A8 Al 58 3.09D {4 -
REAHEZINSESHEHE —BE

R B F RRA

AFS

MELEMRAUBRLEESHME - ARAB A
EHERBHAXREHEREMNAEELR - HBAE

EEZ

BB T

Date obtaining legal advice

BB +sEZERNEH

Executive Director

HITES

Ms. Xue Yuan 28 March 2024

EEE T+ —ZE-WE=A=+/\H
Non-executive Director

FEHITES

Ms. Liu Yan 28 March 2024

2F A+ —ENMFE=A=+/\H
Independent non-executive Directors

BN IEHITES

Mr. Alfred Shu Shum Lai 1 June 2024

BRI A _7_E¢AH +—H

Each of the above Directors has confirmed his/her understanding of the
information provided by the legal adviser and her obligations as a Director.

26 March 2024
—7—@& ﬂ +/\E|

26 March 2024
—EoPF=HA=1+~H

21 June 2024
—E-_WFANA=Z+—H

tREEECERETHARBERMERNER
REGRESMER -
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POLICY TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT VIEWS AND
INPUT

The Company has adopted a policy to ensure independent views and input
are available to the Board, which includes:

(1) The Chairman should be responsible for ensuring that directors
receive, in a timely manner, adequate information, which must be

accurate, clear, complete and reliable.

(2)  The Chairman should at least annually hold meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors. The meeting should include reviewing the performance of
the Board and the flow of information of between management and
the Board.

(3) The Directors may seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

(4)  The Company will, upon reasonable request, provide separate
independent professional advice to Directors to assist the relevant
Directors to perform their duties to the Company.

The above policies will be reviewed on an annual basis for its effectiveness.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The Board or Board committees shall be supplied with adequate
information, in a timely manner, by the senior management, to enable it to
make informed decisions. Such information supplied shall be complete and
reliable. Where any Director requires more information than is volunteered
by the management, each Director has the right to separately and
independently access the Company's senior management to make further
enquiries, if necessary.

Directors are entitled to have access to board papers and related materials in
a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make informal decisions
on matters placed before it. Directors will receive a prompt and full response
to his/her enquiry, if any is raised.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee adopts a variety of methods to determine
candidates for directors, including recommendations from Board members,
the management and professional intermediaries. In addition, the
Nomination Committee will consider director candidates appropriately
submitted by Shareholders. The evaluation of the Nomination Committee
on director candidates may include, but is not limited to, review of resumes
and work experience, personal interviews, verification of professional and
personal recommendation letters, and performing background checks. The
Board will consider the recommendations of the Nomination Committee
and be responsible for designating candidates for directors to be elected
by Shareholders at the Company’s general meeting, or appointing suitable
candidates to serve as Directors to fill Board vacancies or as supplements to
Board members, and to comply with the Articles of Association. All director
appointments should be confirmed through a letter of appointment and/
or service contract, which should state the main terms and conditions of
director appointment.

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following qualification
requirements, which are the requirements for candidates to recommend
potential new Directors to the Board or continue to provide existing
Directors:

Personal and professional conduct and integrity;

Nominees' proven personal achievements and abilities and their
ability to make reasonable business judgments;

Skills that complement the existing boards;

Ability to assist and support management and make a significant
contribution to the success of the Company;

Understand the time and effort required for board members to be
trusted and to perform their duties diligently;

Candidates for independent non-executive directors should meet the
“independence” criteria set out in the Listing Rules and the composition of
the Board complies with the provisions of the Listing Rules.
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The Nomination Committee shall consider other appropriate factors as it
considers appropriate to the best interest of the Company and Shareholders.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of emoluments of the Directors and chief executive and the
remuneration of each of the five highest paid individuals are set out in
Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
FY2024. In FY2024, none of the Directors has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments. There were no emoluments paid by the Group to any of the
Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

The remuneration is determined by reference to the experience, qualification,
position and performance of each Director and senior management and
the goals, strategies and performance of the Company. The remuneration is
also aligned with the market practice and conditions. The Group also has in
place the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme as long term
incentive for performance.

REZESHRAZEEE AR R E

BHmmEMBEE -
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LRBHMEAR

EERFETRAETFHURAZZRFMA L
EENFTIFBERRASE SN FHRAH
EMAMFE 13 R14- RZZT_EF - FEESK
ZERRERETAMNE - AEELERTRESK
FEZERHFMALZAMS ARSI ENAREE
FERMARE B2 REN A RBERAEE -

FHE2EZREENSNERABNRR BF
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P dn Bt 81 K i fn B2 RY AT BIE BRI R AR

The remuneration of the senior management of the Company by band in  —Z N F AR RS REEEHFMARI T :
FY2024 is as follows:

Number of
Remuneration band (HK dollar) individuals
FENAE B (B T) A
500,001-1,000,000 500,001-1,000,000

1,500,001-2,000,000
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The payment and amount (if any) of dividends depend on the Group'’s
operating results, cash flow, financial position, legal and regulatory
restrictions on dividends, future prospects and other relevant factors.
Shareholders will be entitled to receive dividend on a pro-rata basis based on
their respective paid-up Shares or paid-up capital which has been credited to
the Shares. The Company determines the declaration, payment and amount
of dividends at its sole discretion. The proposed payment of dividends must
also be at the discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend is
subject to shareholders’ approval. The Board will conduct annual review on
the dividend policy and does not guarantee any declaration or payment of
dividends in any specific amount for any specific period.

As at 31 December 2024, no arrangement was reached pursuant to which
the shareholders of the Company waived or agreed to waive their dividends.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties,

including:
To develop and review the policies and practices on corporate
governance, including anti-bribery, anti-corruption matters and

whistleblowing disclosures;

To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and the Directors; and

To review the Company’s compliance with Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules (CG Code).

In FY2024, the Board has performed the above duties.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in accordance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules and has established its written terms of
reference in accordance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee is mainly
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim
and annual reports and financial statements of the Group; and overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge of the Company'’s
financial reporting function and their training arrangement and budget, and
to review the risk management and internal control systems as well as their

effectiveness.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss any
area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the interim
and annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee
focuses not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies
and practices but also on the compliance with reporting and accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements in the review of the

Company's interim and annual report.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Alfred Shu Shum Lai, Ms. Lu Mei, and Ms. Katherine Rong Xin,
being independent non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired
by Mr. Alfred Shu Shum Lai, an independent non-executive Director with
appropriate accounting and related financial management expertise, which
meet the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the requirements under Code Provision D3.3(e)(i) of the
CG Code, the Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year with the
auditors of the Company. For the Year of 2024, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings with the senior management and the independent auditors of the
Company, (i) to consider the independence of the independent auditors and
the scope of their audit; (i) to review and discuss the risk management and
internal control system of the Group, the effectiveness of the internal audit
and risk control management function of the Company, and (jii) to consider
the 2023 annual results and the annual report, the 2024 interim results and
the interim report and the opinions and report of the independent auditors,
and submit the results to the Board for approval.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee in accordance
with the CG Code and has established its written terms of reference.
The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy, to review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives, to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors’ and to review and/or approve matters relating to
the share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee consists of three
members, namely Ms. Liu Yan, a non-executive Director, and Ms. Katherine
Rong Xin and Mr. Alfred Shu Shum Lai, being independent non-executive
Directors. Ms. Katherine Rong Xin, an independent non-executive Director,
served as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

For the Year of 2024, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting, to
work with the matters including determined the policy for the remuneration
of executive directors, assessed performance of executive directors and
approved the terms of executive directors’ service contracts, performed by
the Remuneration Committee, and made recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior

management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee in accordance
with the CG Code, and has established its terms of reference. The main
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are, among others:

(1) To review the structure, size and composition of our Board on a
regular basis and make recommendations to our Board regarding any
proposed changes to the composition of our Board;

(2)  To identify, select or make recommendations to our Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorship, and ensure the
diversity of our Board members; and

(3) To assess the independence of our independent non-executive
Directors and make recommendations to our Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment, reappointment and removal of
our Directors and succession planning of our Directors.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee consists of three
members, namely Ms. Liu Yan, a non-executive Director, and Ms. Katherine
Rong Xin and Ms. Lu Mei, being independent non-executive Directors. Ms.
Lu Mei served as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the Year of 2024, the Nomination Committee held one meeting.
At the meeting, the committee members reviewed the structure, size and
diversity of the Board, assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and considered the election and re-election of Directors
based on the nomination procedures of the Company. For details, please
refer to the section headed “Nomination Policy” of this report.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM

The Board, with the support of the finance department, is responsible for
the preparation of financial statements of the Group. In preparation of the
financial statements, the Group adopted HKFRS and consistently used and
applied appropriate accounting policies. The purpose of the Board is to make
a clear and balanced assessment of the Group's results in its annual and
interim reports to the shareholders, and to make appropriate disclosures and
of the CG
Code, the management will provide explanations and necessary information

announcements in a timely manner. Under Code Provision D.1.1

to the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment of financial and
other information submitted to the Board for approval.

The scope of work and reporting responsibilities of Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Limited, the Company's external auditor, are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” of this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

As at the date of this report, Mr. Liu Chao act as company secretary. Mr.
Liu Chao has conducted and received at least 15 hours of continuous
professional learning and training in accordance with Listing Rule 3.29 to
update his skills and knowledge.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the guidelines for Directors’
dealings in the securities of the Company. Upon specific enquiries with all
Directors, each of them has confirmed that he/she has complied with all
applicable code provisions under the Model Code in FY2024.

According to the Company’s requirements, the relevant management
personnel and employees are also subject to the Model Code, which
prohibits them from dealing in the Company’s securities whenever they
possess inside information related to the securities. The Company was not
aware of any incidents of non-compliance with the Model Code by relevant
personnel and employees.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for maintaining appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group on
an ongoing basis and reviewing their effectiveness at least annually.

The Board and senior management are responsible for establishing,
reviewing and implementing the Group's risk management and internal
control systems. The internal control system covers all major aspects of the
Group's operations, including sales, procurement, financial reporting, asset
management, budget and accounting processes, as well as compliance
controls. The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Group also has internal
audit and risk control functions, which mainly analyze and independently
evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems, and report its findings to the senior management at least

annually.

Regarding the Group's risk management and internal control measures, the
Group has formulated a comprehensive set of policies and guidelines, which
detail all aspects of internal control standards, process used to identify,
evaluate and manage significant risks, division of responsibilities, approval
procedures, and personnel accountability. The Group has implemented
procedures and internal controls to process and disclose inside information.
In particular, the Group:

—  has handled in strict accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information Disclosure Guidelines
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong in
June 2012;

—  has established its own disclosure obligation procedures that set out
procedures and controls for assessing potential internal information
and for processing and disseminating internal information;

—  the procedures have been communicated to the Company’s senior

management and employees and the Company monitors its

implementation;
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— made extensive, non-exclusive information disclosure to the public
in financial reports, announcements and through channels such as
websites;

—  adopted policy that supports anti-corruption laws and regulations;
and

— adopted a whistleblowing policy and system.

According to the overall strategy on internal control of the Company, the
Operation Department (£ & 2 7% &5 F9) of the Group is responsible for
organizing and implementing related operations for internal control this
year, and is liable for providing the Audit and Supervision Department (5
5T B 22 #B) with relevant information on internal control for the business,
mainly comprising internal control design, operation and self-inspection for
internal control. Should there be any material changes in internal control,
reporting would be conducted in time. Self-inspection for internal control
would be carried out with draft report on internal control completed, based
upon the annual assessment plan of the Group on internal control. When
internal control defects are discovered, internal control rectification would
be implemented after reporting for approval by the Audit and Supervision
Department (5T E5 22 26) and the Board of the Group.

The Audit and Supervision Department (25 5t E5 22 #B) would organize,
prepare and review the annual plan for self-assessment on internal control
which would be organized and conducted by itself. Besides, it would
investigate and tackle violations of regulations and disciplines therein, and
would propose solutions to and report on important issues occurring in
the establishment of internal control. On the other hand, the Board would
review and approve the self-assessment report on internal control of the
Group, before the approval of the identification report of substantial defects
(including the defect rectification plan).
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For the Year of 2024, the Board has reviewed the relevant risk management

and internal control systems. Details are as follows:

(1) reviewed the function of internal audit of the Group;

S
1S5

confirmed that the risk management and internal control systems
were reviewed on an annual basis. This review covered the period
from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024; and

(3) listened to the work report on the Company’s internal control and
corporate governance made by the risk control and legal affairs centre
of the Company. Upon review, the Board of the Company was of
the view that the Company’s internal control and risk management
systems were effective and sufficient.

The risk management and internal control systems are continuously
reviewed and evaluated by the Audit Committee and executive Directors,
and will be further reviewed and evaluated by the Board at least annually,
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls. During the Year of 2024, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
has reviewed the Company’s internal control and risk management systems
and considered the systems to be effective and adequate.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for reviewing and
supervising independence of auditors and objectiveness and effectiveness
of audit procedures. The Audit Committee receives letters from the auditors,
confirms their independence and objectiveness, and holds meetings with
the auditors for the purpose of consideration of the audit scope offered
by them, and consideration of and approval for the fees charged by them
and the scope and appropriateness of non-audit services (if any). The
Audit Committee also advises the Board on appointment and retention of
independent auditors.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers retired as the auditor of the Company at the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 14 June
2024. Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (‘Baker Tilly”) was engaged as the
auditor of the Company with a term of office from 24 July 2024 until the end
of the 2025 annual general meeting of the Company. For the year ended 31
December 2024, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’'s external
auditor is set out below:

BREBOKEGNRMEBEAIR T _MFA+TA
BITNARARRBAFASLERFRERRAIZ
AN - KB A GMEBKAARLDR (KB %E
BARNNGIEEN  THE S _NF+-A=1+mX
HEARRIZZ-_AFREBFRSLERA/IL - &
E_Z_NFE+_A=+—HLFE BN EHN
RATINEBIZBED 2 B2 &P T -

RMB’000

ARET

Audit services E % IR 7% 1,585
Non-audit services IEFNZ RS -
1,585

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Our Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy’) setting out the approach to achieve diversity on our Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of a diversified Board, and
considers board-level diversity to be an important element in supporting the
achievement of the Company's strategic goals and sustainable development.
Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to make decisions
based on the strengths of the candidates and their contribution to the
Board through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualification, experience, independence, skills, and knowledge, as well as
the Company's business characteristics and future development needs. The
Company will select potential Board candidates based on merit and his/
her potential contribution to our Board while taking into account the Board
Diversity Policy and other factors of the Company. Our Company will also
take into consideration our own business model and specific needs from
time to time. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and
succession planning candidates, will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard to the benefits of diversity on our Board.
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The Board, which reflects the current management of our Group, comprises
eight members, including a female executive Director, a female non-
executive Director and two female independent non-executive Directors. As
such, the Board considers gender diversity has been achieved. The Directors
have a balanced mix of experiences, including business management,
property investment, real estate development, accounting and audit, and
administrative experiences. Furthermore, the ages of the Directors of the
Company range from 42 years old to 64 years old. The Company have taken
and will continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels of
our Company, including but without limitation at our Board and senior

management levels.

Taking into account the business model and specific needs of the Company
as well as the presence of four female Directors out of a total of eight Board
members, the Company considers that the composition of our Board
satisfies the Board Diversity Policy of the Company. The Company has also
taken and will continue to take measures to enhance diversity at all levels
of the Company, including, but not limited to, the Board, management
levels and general workforce. Although the Company recognizes that the
existing composition of the Board can increase the diversity of the Board,
it will continue to refer to the Board Diversity Policy and apply the rules of
appointment based on the actual situation.

With regards to gender diversity on our Board, the Board Diversity
Policy further provides that our Board shall take opportunities to
increase the proportion of female members when selecting and making
recommendations on suitable candidates for Board appointments. The Group
will also ensure that there is a gender gap when recruiting staff at the mid
to senior level so that there are female senior management and potential
successors to our Directors going forward. It is the objective of the Company
to maintain an appropriate balance of gender diversity with reference to
stakeholders” expectation and international and local recommended best
practices. As at 31 December 2024, the gender ratio of the Group is as
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follows:

Types Male Female bR B Z
Senior management 75.0% 25.0% =R B 75.0% 25.0%
All employees 59.6% 40.4% BT 59.6% 40.4%
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The Board will review the structure, size and composition of the Board once
a year to ensure the effective implementation of the Diversity Policy of the
Board members. The nomination committee will also review the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The Company treats all shareholders equally with an aim to ensure that
their rights can be fully exercised and their legitimate interests can be
safeguarded and that the shareholders’ general meeting can be convened
and held in strict compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
Company's corporate governance structure is to ensure that all shareholders,
especially the minority shareholders, can enjoy equal benefits and undertake
corresponding responsibilities.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, the Board may
convene an extraordinary general meeting as it thinks fit. Shareholders
requisitioning extraordinary general meetings or class meetings shall abide
by the following procedures:

Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Shareholders of the Company who would like to put forward any proposals
at the shareholders’ meeting should follow the above procedures, and
deposit such written requisition addressed to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong, i.e. Unit 407, 4/F, 8 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining stable and constructive
communication with shareholders and investors, adheres to the principles
of integrity, regulation and high transparency, and discloses relevant
information in compliance with requirements under the Listing Rules. The
Group disseminates information to its shareholders in the following manner:

(1) delivering results and reports to all shareholders.

(2)  publishing announcements on the disclosure website designated
by the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company and
dispatching circulars for shareholders as required under the Listing
Rules; investors are enabled to access the Company’s particulars,
statutory announcements, and annual reports, interim reports, inside
information (if applicable), circulars and announcements published
since its listing on the website of the Company, which can be found in
the column headed “Investor Relations” on the website.

(3) holding general meetings and extraordinary general meetings
as an effective communication channel between the Board and
shareholders.

(4)  the "investor relations department” of the Company takes charge
of liaison with investors and analysts by answering their questions,
organizing field trips to the office premises and/or project sites of the
Group, gathering, in a timely manner, opinions and comments from
analysts and investors on the operation of the Group, and considering
and adopting them in the course of the Group's operation according
to actual conditions.

(5) communicating actively with various parties, especially holding
briefing sessions, press conferences and one-on-one meetings
with institutional investors upon publication of results and material

investments.
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The Board is of the view that the above shareholders’ communication
policy is effective as there is direct two-way communication between the
Shareholders and the Company, and the Shareholders could put enquirers
to the Board throughout the year. The Board will continue to review the
effectiveness of its shareholders’ communication policies.

The Company maintains a website at http://www.landseawy.com/, where
information on the Company's businesses and projects, key corporate
governance policies and announcements, financial reports and other
information are available for public access. Shareholders and investors may
send written enquiries or requests to the company secretary of the Company
by one of the following ways:

Address: Unit 407, 4/F, 8 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2879 6805

Email: irwy@landsea.hk

As regards matters concerning nominating candidate(s) for election as a
Director(s) by shareholders and specific matters concerning shareholder
communications, the procedures of nominating director candidate by
relevant shareholders and the shareholder communications policies are
available on the website of the Company.

THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

There is no change in the Company’s articles of association during the year.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
SERHE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year of 2024.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
provision of property management services, non-owner value-added
services, community value-added services and apartment operation and
management services in the PRC. An analysis of the Group's revenue and
operating results for the Year of 2024 is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group in this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's business review, including the discussion on the major risk
exposure and uncertainties facing the Group and the potential business
development course of the Group in the future, is set out in the sections
headed “Report of Directors” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report contains part
of the analysis on the Group’s annual performance using key financial
performance indicators. For explanations on the major relations between the
Company and its employees, customers and suppliers, please refer to the
sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Employees and
Remuneration Policies” and “Report of Directors — Major Customers and
Suppliers” in this report.

These discussions form part of the Report of Directors.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
SERWHE

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and business partners are
keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed to establishing
a close and caring relationship with its employees, providing quality services
to its customers and enhancing cooperation with its business partners. The
Company provides a fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff,
provides competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group also puts
ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and development resources
to the employees so that they can keep abreast of the latest development
of the market and the industry and, at the same time, improve their
performance and self-fulfillment in their positions.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with customers. The Group enhances the relationship by continuous
interaction with customers to gain insight on the changing market demand
so that the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also established
procedures in place for handling customers’ complaints to ensure customers’
complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group is also dedicated to developing good relationship with suppliers
as long-term business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s business.
The Group reinforces business partnerships with suppliers by ongoing
communication in a proactive and effective manner so as to ensure quality
and timely delivery.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and the management are aware, the Group has complied
in all material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During the
Year of 2024, there was no material breach of, or non-compliance, with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

B2 R 52 AH B 5 A B &

AEERREE BEPREBBHREAUSEER
MR ASERNEEEERYEYREAERN
R REPRHEEERY  UMREXBEHS
fEe RABRERFRLZEN TSR METIR
BELl REETINEHIRARHAERS N
FRENARBEEREE -  ARE TN
REBRHUTRHEIRERER - (ERFAIRR
MERITENENER  BRRARENREALE
TTRITRSHIER

AEERAREXPHEBRIFAETIER - A5H
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend for the Year
of 2024 (year ended 31 December 2023: Nil).

BORROWINGS
For the Year of 2024 and as at 31 December 2024 the Group had no

borrowings.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company for the Year of
2024 are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company for the Year of
2024 are set out on in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. The
reserves available for distribution to shareholders of the Company as at 31
December 2024 was RMB-60 million.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No donations were made by the Group during the Year of 2024.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The results of the Group for the Year of 2024 and its financial position as at
1 December 2024 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on

pages 135 to 276 of this report.
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DIRECTORS o=
For the Year of 2024 and up to the date of this report, the Directors areas R-ZE_NFEREEAREB L 0T ¢

follows:

Name of Directors Position

EEpE B

Mr. Tian Ming Executive Director

HEASTE HITES

Mr. Wu Xu Executive Director

REFxE WITES

Ms. Xue Yuan (appointed on 28 March 2024) Executive Director
EEZT(RZZE-_MEFE=A -+ N \AEZE) WITESE

Ms. Zhou Qin (resigned on 28 March 2024) Executive Director
Agz+(R_T_MFE=A =+ N\BEE) WITES

Mr. Liu Chao (resigned on 28 March 2024) Executive Director

gBEdE (RZT_MFE=A =+ N\BEE) BITES

Mr. Liu Yong Non-executive Director

Liu Yong 75 4 FBMITES

Ms. Liu Yan (appointed on 28 March 2024) Non-executive Director
FFALT(R_ZE_MF=A T N\NBEEE) FHITESF

Ms. Lu Mei Independent Non-executive Director
B+ B IEATES

Mr. Alfred Shu Shum Lai (appointed on 21 June 2024) Independent Non-executive Director
BEREE (RZE_MFSAZT—BEZE) BIMIEAITES

Ms. Katherine Rong Xin Independent Non-executive Director
Katherine Rong Xin Z B EITES

Dr. Chen Kevin Chien-wen (resigned on 21 June 2024) Independent Non-executive Director
REXET (RZT_MFRAZ+—BEHE) B IFEATES
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS EERBEK

The Company entered into a service contract with each of the executive ~ANAREZHITEECFILRIEEL » BH=F -
Directors for a term of three years. The Company entered into an  ANAF D RIEIFFMITESE MBI IFNTESRI VLS
appointment letter with each of the non-executive Directors and the K BHI=F - S EFAREBEAARMABERE
independent non-executive Directors for a term of three years. Fach Director ~ #iRI|$p B R EIW E R E(E - BEEFHAQ RIS E
shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance  fAIff@ A RIFT L ANSKE TR R —F AL L EE O
with the Articles of Association of the Company. None of the Directors  EEERRIN BN TR IEHRFE AL °

has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which

is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
For the Year of 2024, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) had any interests in any business which
competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group. The
independent non-executive Directors were not aware of any violation of
such commitment.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions in which they were deemed or
taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were required pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, were as

follows:

() LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES

EERmERE 2R

RoB-mEE  HEEERREsanuEA E
ER LR REARBEEBBART RTLH
BB T O AR R AA EHS - BYENITE

£ T MEERREBERBOER -
EEREFETBAEREAQAARS -

HERORESNEZER AR

R-ZZE-_WF+=-A=+—H ' EZRAQFAERS
THRABRARRKEMBHEE (EREREHFR
HA B I&BIZE XV EB) M AR (D - MERARAR (D R & HE & P
BIRIE B ﬁ&%f%%%w%%mm”ﬂaﬂa
ARRRBRANEREAR (BIEESREES
&HﬂfflﬂﬁlﬁﬁF‘W%X%&”ﬂ’ﬁiﬁ%%ﬁﬂ’ﬂfﬁ%
mIKE) HIREBEFHRAERGIE52GE
SR ZIGFTENECMANERZ RAR « iBE £
T #5 BI Bff $% C3FT S A R 22 <F B B A0 & 2R 1 7] R it
RETMERRARLT

n RROWEFRE

Approximate
percentage in

Number of total number of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares Held issued shares®™et?
HE BT

Rz

HE B3 EatE FEROGEE HBAOEI WD
Mr.Tian Ming (“Mr. Tian") Interest in controlled corporation 165,137,165 Note2) 40.20%
AAASEE (TEEE]D X E s 165,137,165 (HE2) 40.20%
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(1

Notes:

il The total number of shares in issue of the Company as of 31 December 2024
was 410,765,000.

2. These include (i) 23,998,345 Shares held through Green Sailing (PTC) Limited;
(i) 4,316,000 Shares held through Greensheid Corporation ("Greensheid”)
and (iii) 136,822,820 Shares held through Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd.
(‘Tian Family Investment”).

Green Sailing (PTC) Limited is wholly-owned by Honor Limited which is in turn
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian. Greensheid is wholly-owned by
Landsea International Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Landsea
Group. Landsea Group is owned as to 34.15% by Nanjing Ding Chong Investment
Management Consultants Ltd. ("Nanjing Ding Chong") and 15.85% by Mr. Tian.
Nanjing Ding Chong is a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian.
Tian Family Investment is wholly-owned by Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd, which is
in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tian. Therefore, Mr. Tian is deemed
to be interested in these 165,137,165 Shares held by Green Sailing (PTC) Limited,
Greensheid and Tian Family Investment pursuant to the SFO.

LONG POSITION IN SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED
UNDER THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

()

fia -

1. Ay IS = e = M- = B = qr— 5] 0 ANA I E) s
1TRR 1D 48 885 410,765,000 % °

2. 2 5 B 10 B 15 (i) 1 #8 Green Sailing (PTC) Limited
5 #923,998,345 R AR 17 (i) i 8 Greensheid
Corporation ([ Greensheid |) # 5 # 4,316,000 f%
A& 15 ¢ K (iii) & # Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd.
(I Tian Family Investment |) 1 4 £ 136,822,820
AR ©

Green Sailing (PTC) Limited B4 Honor Limited & & # & -
i Honor Limited B A St £ & B B # B ° Greensheid
f Landsea International Holdings Limited & & #& & * 1M
Landsea International Holdings Limited Bl F7 BA &% & B 2
EHE PHEEHERALERAEEBEENAERA
A ((ARSE]) HEAH3415%K% B H X EHEH1585% e
MRREABLEEZEE=EA KA A ° Tian Family
Investment FA Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd 2 B # & © M
Tian Family Holding Pte. Lid BIFR HE £ 2 E B A ©
At - REBEEFFRBAEERG  BEEBERBRZEZED
71| F Green Sailing (PTC) Limited * Greensheid X Tian Family
Investment FT45 A 8 165,137,165 AR AR D A #E B 12 ©

RARYE IR 40 B BB 5T 81 1R W B9 IR 47 S 1
"R

Aggregate Approximate

long position percentage in

in the underlying total number of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares issued shares™°t"

HERITROAH

RIERE R 6 1Y WENBE DL

EEHE B EEHE HRARE E3E0)

Wu Xu Beneficial owner 444,000 Note 2) 0.11%

=18 i §:37 2-UN 444,000 M) 0.11%

Xue Yuan Beneficial owner 296,000 (Nete2) 0.07%

234 - §:37 2SN 296,000 *1E2) 0.07%
Notes: P &E -

1. The total number of shares in issue of the Company as of 31 December 2024 1. HE_ZT-_NMFE+-_A=+—H KAQFE2%

was 410,765,000. 1TR& 17 48 1% 410,765,000 % °

2. For details, please refer to the section headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" of
this report.

2. BRI - F2RARE [ B8l —& -
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(Ill) LONG POSITION IN SHARE AWARDS GRANTED

) RBHEROGRBTERENRDERB

UNDER THE SHARE AWARD SCHEME HE
Approximate
Aggregate percentage in
long position total number of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest in the shares issued shares™°t"
HERTRAG
RERGH R
EEnE B EHE HRHEHE B 5 b e
Wu Xu Beneficiary of a trust 2AR0)0/0[0) “eren2 0.60%

(other than a discretionary interest)
=28 XA (BBERRIN 2,480,000 2" 3) 0.60%
Notes: M 5%
1. The total number of shares in issue of the Company as of 31 December 2024 1. BHE-_T-_NF+-_A=+—H ARAAE#
was 410,765,000. TR 17 42 1% 410,765,000 % °

2. The awarded shares are held on trust by Green Sailing (PTC) Limited, the 2. BEBEHAZT - —F—A+/\BHETEEE -

trustee of the Share Award Scheme of the Company, the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme of the Company, pursuant to a trust deed dated 18 January
2021.

3 For details, please refer to the section headed “SHARE AWARD SCHEME" of
this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required pursuant to the Model
Code to be otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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B R AR RIRR (D B2 E) 5T &) A9 2 55 A Green
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, so far as the Directors are aware, the following
persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) had
or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREMATERG REER
DR KX

R-FB_EE+_HA=+—8 BRE=HRA T
AL (XFEERARARDTRAR) RO
HERDTHEEIRRELEFREAREESR
HIEGRHIEXVERE 2 X3 D B Z EAERARA R
X PTR BB HEETOR R - MR AR R BIRIRE 5
KB 1GGI5 336 R AR ER B M AR =EOR R

Approximate

Number of percentage in
Shares held total number of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest (eteD  jssued Shares("°te2)
HEBRTRG
BFEROEAE BN
Pt 5 RntE Rl [E] 52 [eis Lalir)
Ms. Murong Xinyao (Note 3) Interest of spouse 165,137,165 40.20%
RABHAL (MEE3) FoiBfEss
Honor Limited (Note 4) Beneficial owner and interest in controlled 23,998,345 5.84%
corporation
Honor Limited (Bff5E 4) BB ARZE LB R
Green Sailing (PTC) Limited (Note 4) Trustee 23,998,345 5.84%
Green Sailing (PTC) Limited (P 3% 4) ZFEA
Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. (Note 5) Beneficial owner 136,822,820 33.30%
Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. (3£ 5) EnEA
Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd. (Note 5) Interest in controlled corporation 136,822,820 33.30%

Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd. (B 3£ 5)

HEE s
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Approximate

Number of percentage in
Shares held total number of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest (ote)  jssued Shareste2)
HEBTRG
FEROHE BB
mE AR B EEHE e 1 H 2 L w2
Hong Kong New Tourism Corporation Beneficial owner 71,575,509 17.42%
Limited (Note 6)
BB IKERAR AR (Hite) EnlEEA
ARG ES (5E) BR A Al (Note 6) Interest in controlled corporation 71,575,509 17.42%
AREHEX(EE)GRAF (izxe) R LB ER
RN TIREEEBREMT AT (Note6)  Interest in controlled corporation 71,575,509 17.42%
AR IERESEERAEEAA (Me) XEEAEREZR
State-owned Assets Supervision and Interest in controlled corporation 71,575,509 17.42%
Administration Commission of Nanjing
Municipal Government (Note 6)
EARTMARBNEBEEERE S NEL X
EREZE g (fHste)
Mr. Lin Befeng Beneficial owner 32,318,647 7.87%
Lin Befeng %c 4 EnEAEA
Mr. Chen Huaijun (Note 7) Beneficial owner and interest in controlled 30,501,000 743%
corporation
Chen Huaijun 7t 4 (Bf5E7) Bl ARSI LB R
Lucky Front Investments Limited (Note 7) Beneficial owner 26,801,000 6.52%

Lucky Front Investments Limited (P 5 7)

EmEAA
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Notes:

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

The calculation is based on the total number of 410,765,000 Shares issued by the
Company as of 31 December 2024.

Ms. Murong Xinyao is the spouse of Mr. Tian. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Murong
Xinyao is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Tian is interested.

23,998,345 Shares held through Green Sailing (PTC) Limited. Green Sailing (PTC)
Limited acts as the trustee of the Green Life Trust, which is set up for the purpose
of a share incentive scheme to be adopted at least six months after Listing, and is
wholly owned by Honor Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Honor Limited is deemed to
be interested in the Shares in which Green Sailing (PTC) Limited is interested.

Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. is wholly owned by Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd..
By virtue of the SFO, Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. is interested.

Hong Kong New Tourism Corporation Limited is wholly owned by 78 FRES 45 EE 3 (5=

B)BRAR. MREHES(EE)ER AR is wholly owned by 7 R 3T L%
A EBAREFAE] whichis in turn held as to 90.79% by the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of Nanjing Municipal Government
("Nanjing SASAC’). By virtue of the SFO, each of FI RES4H E ¥ (S E) BR A A,
B R L% & & @ AR & £ 2 7] and Nanjing SASAC is deemed to be interested
in the Shares in which Hong Kong New Tourism Corporation Limited is interested.

These include (i) 26,801,000 Shares held through Lucky Front Investments Limited, a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Huaijun; and (i) 3,700,000 Shares held by Mr.
Chen Huaijun. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen Huaijun is deemed to be interested in
the Shares in which Lucky Front Investments Limited is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Company is not aware

that any other person has any interests or short positions in the Shares and

underlying Shares, which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant

to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which is required to be entered

in the register maintained by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

G

B LSRR EE &SN
SRIVN/N

FRILIEZALTREDFNEE -

BEARARR-_Z_NE+-A=1+—A2BTHRH
48 2410,765,000 IREHHE -

RABHL T AEEENRS - BEZHRBEEH
RABRALTHEARBAEREEEZNBROPES
s o

23,998,345 i B 15 35 #8 Green Sailing (PTC) Limited #  ©
Green Sailing (PTC) Limited #& {E Green Life Trust B2 5EA
ZIErER AR EmEDNE R BFEMO R G SR
&ML+ B Honor Limited 2 B#E A ° RIBFF R HE
16 {5 » Honor Limited #% 18 /& 7 Green Sailing (PTC) Limited
HERROROFHEEER -

Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd. 8§ Tian Family Holding
Pte. Ltd. = BE#E A  IBIRFE F K HI & (& + Tian Family
Holding Pte. Ltd. %% #% /& 54 Tian Family Investment Pte. Ltd.
BEEERNROPHEEER -

EBNIKBEBR AR AR AMEREHESE(KE)BRA
RIZEHA BRASHEE(SE)BRARHBERT
IREEEERETRARZERE Ffﬁﬁﬁl%ﬁl&ﬁ
SEAEREAAFRNHBEATARBBEREAEEE

EREZEe((BREAEZE]) FHN079%ER ° *EB%M
FREERY BREHEX(EE)BRAR BR
HIREEEERETRAFALAERAHAEZSAREAR
REBFIKERERAREE RSN RDPHE R -

Z F M7 B IE (1) 8 Chen Huaijun e £ 2 B HEA KR A
Lucky Front Investments Limited ¥ #9 26,801,000 A& & 1% ;
K2 (i) B Chen Huaijun %5 & #5 A #9 3,700,000 i A% 17 © 1R
HEFEH R HEE KB - Chen Huaijun 5t 4 3 4R & 7 Lucky
Front Investments Limited % & # z FI AR 0 P #E G % ©

R-E-_WNE+-A=+—
7 7 AN BRI E b A £ AR K48 B A%

h#%ﬁwﬁ A5 NMHIEIEMEXVELE 2 K30

AHEARRRNEMEEIORE

KRB E 7 K

BI&DI% 336 (KRBT FENE LM EMERIAR °
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to recognise the contributions
to the Group by certain eligible participants (as defined under Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules) and/or to give incentives in order to motivate certain
eligible persons for the continuing development and long-term growth of
the Group. The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of
10 years commencing on the Adoption Date, being 18 March 2022 and shall
remain effective until 17 March 2032.

Green Sailing (PTC) Limited (“Green Sailing (PTC)") has been appointed as
the trustee of the trust pursuant to a trust deed dated 18 January 2021, and
holds Shares to be granted to the eligible persons under the Share Award
Scheme. As at the date of this report, Green Sailing (PTC) holds 23,998,345
Shares on trust for the Share Award Scheme, representing 5.84% of the
number of issued shares of the Company as at the date of this report. The
maximum number of Shares that may be granted as awards under the
Scheme (excluding awards that have lapsed or been cancelled in accordance
with the scheme rules) shall be such number of Shares held or to be held
by Green Sailing (PTC) on trust for the purposes of the Share Award Scheme
from time to time.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Advisory Committee may,
from time to time, choose the selected participants to participate in the
Share Award Scheme and determine the number of awarded shares to be
awarded, the vesting conditions (if any) and the vesting schedule of the
awarded shares. An offer letter setting out, among others, the number, the
vesting conditions (if any) and the vesting schedule of the awarded shares
to be granted will be issued by the Advisory Committee to the selected
participants.
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RERAIERME 7 - i) 2ZENE 211 B 28R40 B HA e
SAREIFEFRNEREEKR BT -—_4=H
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Green Sailing (PTO) BiAx (0 BT B AGFE A R A
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TR 10 81 B #)5.84% o R 1R 5T &I 7] g % 1 1E = 5= B
WROEREE (TREREFTEIRAB K =kT
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The summary of the principal terms and conditions of Share Award Scheme
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 5 July 2022. Details of

A7 BB 51 8 = 2 15K

RAFHF B Z N AR

RNAEH

HAZEZ-__FLtARRNRSE - R EEFERN

movement of the Share Award Scheme during the Year are set out as below: ~ ANFERESEFEHFIAT ¢
Cancelled/
Unvested Awarded Vested Lapsed Unvested
awards as at shares awards awards awards as at
1 January during the during the during the 31 December Vesting
Category Date of award 2024 2024 year 2024 year 2024 year 2024 period
R=B-m%F ZBRIMEE  RIBCRE
-A-B ZCEB-MEE C-B-MEE  HH/AWM T-A=t-H
5 RBAH AERRE RERG ERRRE ®E AERRE RS
Executive Directors
HITEE
Wu Xu 5 July 2022 2,480,000 = = = 2,480,000
218 =
+ARA
Sub-total of Directors 2,480,000 - - - 2,480,000
BB it
Five highest paid individuals during 5 July 2022 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
2024 (excluding
Mr. Wu Xu)
“RoMERARREMAL ZBC
(TRERBLE) tAAR
Sub-total of five highest paid individuals during 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
2024 (excluding Mr. Wu Xu)
ZECMERERBHMAL
(FEERMBLL) Dit
Other employee participants 5 July 2022 1,480,000 - - - 1,480,000
HitEE 2 8% i St 2
+tARA
Other employee participants 1,480,000 - - - 1,480,000
HitEESEE
Total 4,960,000 - - - 4,960,000 Note
H ffaE
Note: Mt aE -

The awarded shares were granted without purchase price and will all be transferred from
Green Sailing (PTC) Limited, the trustee of the Share Award Scheme of the Company, to the
names of the respective grantees after five years lock-up period, i.e. on 5 July 2027.

The closing price of the shares immediately prior to the date of granting of award and on
the date of grant of award were HK$3.01 and HK$3.02, respectively. Please refer to note
39.22 headed “Share-based Payment” and note 29 headed “Employee Share Scheme” in
notes to consolidated financial statements for the fair value of awards at the date of grant,
as well as the accounting standard and policy adopted.

R RER DI EBEE

RN EFHERRN—F

—tF A A BHBAARR ARG RZEF 88 X 55 A Green Sailing
(PTO) Limited EEE T FARAEL T ©

B9 A B B2 % ) HE B B HA AT R A IR HH 28 B B BB T (B & B
B30 BT R302BIT e BERERONETEHAFEN
MEAMNETERIRECR - B2HREMBHRERMTE3922[ K
AT RH 20 B B R DETEN] -

HRREeEERBEARIR/ —F _MFEFH
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MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT UNDER
THE SCHEME

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share Award
Scheme shall comply with all applicable regulations, including those
imposed by the Listing Rules, and shall not exceed the individual limit set
out in Rule 17.03D of the Listing Rules.

VESTING PERIOD OF AWARDS GRANTED UNDER THE
SCHEME AND BASIS OF PURCHASE PRICE

Vesting period will be determined by the committee at its absolute
discretion, during which the trustee of the share award scheme shall
hold the shares on the terms of the trust deed, and the relevant awarded
shares shall vest in the selected participant during and on the expiry of the
applicable vesting period in accordance with the scheme rules of the share

award scheme.

Vesting conditions, which will be set out in the notice of award to the
relevant selected participants, will contain such conditions imposed by the
Advisory Committee as it deems appropriate with respect to the entitlement
of the selected participant to the awarded shares (including the conditions
in relation to the vesting, the vesting schedule and any purchase price (if
any)).

ACCEPTANCE

An Award shall be deemed to have been irrevocably accepted by a selected
participant unless the selected participant shall within five business days
after receipt of the notice of award notify the Company in writing that he
would decline to accept such awarded shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme for the purpose of
recognising and acknowledging the contributions of the eligible participants
(including employee participants, service providers and related entity
participants as defined under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules) made to the
Group.

On 5 July 2022, the Company offered to grant an aggregate of 6,476,600
share options to the option grantees to recognise and acknowledge their
contributions made to the Group in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.
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Details of the grant of share options were set out in the Company’s

BREBROHRFBEARARRBAHMAE-F

P, Ty B

announcement dated 5 July 2022, movement of the share options during T AR BMRE  ROMERRNFENEBFITH
the Year are set out as below: JEAT
Outstanding
options
Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat31
Date priceper  optionsasat during the during the during the during the December Vesting Exercise
Category of grant Share (HKS) 1January 2024 2024 year 2024 year 2024 year 2024 year 2024 period period
it Judi
R-2-mE t2A
-A-H Er=k
SRTEE EAORY R-FSE RCECR RSECD RCRSB O HAGREH
£Al RiiAH (m) R EERY FEfE FEEH EREN kiR R4 ks
Executive Directors
HEE
WuXu 5 July 2022 302 444000 = = = = 444000 Notes 1,2 Notes 1,2
R it St M2 M2
kil
Xue Yuan 5 July 2022 302 296,000 = = = = 296000 Notes 1,3 Notes 1,3
B it St i3 ME3
kil
Sub-total of Directors 740,000 - - - - 740,000
EE it
Five highest paid 5 July 2022 302 666,000 - - - - 666,000 Notes 1,3 Notes 1,3
individuals during 2024
(excluding Mr. Wu Xu
and Ms. Xue Yuan)
S LTS . S Wit3 M3
AT (FRfERELE kil
RERRT)
Sub-total of five highest 5 July 2022 3.02 666,000 - - - - 666,000 Notes 1,3 Notes 1,3
paid individuals during
2024 (excluding Mr. Wu Xu
and Ms, Xue Yuan)
ZE-RERERAHN —F - i3 ME3
AL (FEERELS kil
REgzs) )it
Other employee participants 5 July 2022 30 4145500 - - - 821,000 3324500 Notes 1,3 Notes 1,3
AfbERSEE it Sk M3 ME3
kil
Sub-total of other employee 5 July 202 302 4145500 - - - 821,000 3304500 Notes 1,3 Notes 1,3
participants
EtESSEE )i it Sk M3 W3
kil
Total 5,551,500 - - - 821,000 4,730,500 Note 4
it fit4
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Notes:

il The closing price of the shares immediately before the date of grant was HK$3.01,
and the closing price on the date of grant was HK$3.02. The share options granted
are vested on the percentage of 25%, 35% and 40% on 5 July 2023, 5 July 2024 and
5 July 2025, and exercisable from 5 July 2023 to 4 July 2032, 5 July 2024 to 4 July
2032 and 5 July 2025 to 4 July 2032, respectively. Please refer to note 39.22 headed
“share-based payment” and note 29 headed “Employee Share Scheme” in notes to
consolidated financial statements for the fair value of options at the date of grant, as
well as the accounting standard and policy adopted.

2. 111,000 shares vested on 5 July 2023 and become exercisable from 5 July 2023 to
4 July 2032; 155,400 shares vested on 5 July 2024 and become exercisable from 5
July 2024 to 4 July 2032; and 177,600 shares will vest on 5 July 2025 and become
exercisable from 5 July 2025 to 4 July 2032.

3. 74,000 shares vested on 5 July 2023 and become exercisable from 5 July 2023 to
4 July 2032; 103,600 shares vested on 5 July 2024 and become exercisable from 5
July 2024 to 4 July 2032; and 118,400 shares will vest on 5 July 2025 and become
exercisable from 5 July 2025 to 4 July 2032.

4. As of 31 December 2024, 3,175,125 share options were vested.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme, unless
approved by the shareholders of the Company, the maximum number of
Shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceeds 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the Listing Date, being 40,000,000 Shares, representing
9.7% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this report.

Subject to earlier termination by our Company in general meeting or by the
Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from 15 June 2021, and the Share Option Scheme will expire on 14
June 2031.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, total number of shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the options
granted to each participant including both exercised and unexercised
options under the Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme
adopted by the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue on the date of grant. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholder’s approval in a general meeting.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years
from that date. The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding
any independent non-executive director who is a proposed grantee of
the share options). In addition, any share options granted to substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the Shares in issue at any
time and with an aggregate value (based on the official closing price of the
Company's shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under any
share option schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit being

exceeded.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from
the date of offer, upon payment of nominal consideration of HKS1 in total
by the grantee. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme and the terms of grant which shall not be more

than 10 years from the date of grant.

The subscription price for the Shares to be issued upon exercise of the options
shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii)
the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (jii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of grant. The subscription price will be determined by the board of

directors at the time the option is offered to the participants.
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OTHER INFORMATION ABOUT THE SHARE
SCHEMES

As at 31 December 2024 and as at the date of this report, 35,067,200 share
options, representing 35,067,200 shares of the Company, were available for
grant under the Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2024, 19,038,345 share awards were available for grant
under the Share Award Scheme.

Under the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme, save as disclosed
in this report, there are no:

(i) participants with options and awards granted that is in excess of the 1%
individual limit; and

(i) options and awards granted and to be granted to any related entity
participant or service provider in any 12-month period exceeding 0.1%
of the relevant class of shares in issue.

Saved for the above-mentioned Share Option Scheme and the Share Award
Scheme, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had any other share-
incentive plan during the year ended 31 December 2024.

No service provider sublimit was set under each of the Share Option Scheme
and the Share Award Scheme.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE EQUITY OR DEBT
SECURITIES

For the Year of 2024, none of the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement enabling the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of equity or debt securities,
including the debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

For the Year of 2024, save as disclosed in this report, there was no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the Company,
its holding company or subsidiary or the controlling shareholder was a
party, and in which the Directors or their respective connected entities were
materially interested, either directly or indirectly.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

From the Year of 2024, save as disclosed in the section headed “Related
Party Transactions” below, there was no significant contract relating to the
business of the Group between the Company (or any of its subsidiaries)
and its controlling shareholders (or any of its/their subsidiaries), nor was
there any significant contract for the provision of services by the controlling
shareholders (or any of its/their subsidiaries) to the Company (or any of its

subsidiaries).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year of 2024, the revenue attributable to the Group’s largest
customer, and five largest customers in aggregate, represented
approximately 1.5% and 4.3% of the Group's total annual revenue,

respectively.

For the Year of 2024, the purchase attributable to the Group's largest
suppliers and five largest suppliers in aggregate, represented approximately
7.2% and 25.0% of the Group's total annual purchase, respectively.

Except that the controlling shareholder of the Company is interested in
Landsea Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries for the Year of 2024, none of
the other Directors, their respective associates or other Shareholders (to
the knowledge of the Directors, who are interested in more than 5% of the
issued Shares) had any interests in the five largest suppliers or customers of

the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions have been entered into and/or continued

between certain connected persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) and

the Company, and the Company made the following relevant disclosures in

accordance with Chapter 14A the of Listing Rules:

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

(a)

112

Trademark Licensing Agreement

On 16 June 2021, the Company entered into a trademark licensing
agreement with Landsea Group (the “Trademark Licensing
Agreement’), pursuant to which Landsea Group agreed to irrevocably
and unconditionally grant the Group an exclusive, non-transferable
licence to use certain trademarks registered by Landsea Group in the
PRC (the “PRC Trademarks") for a perpetual term commencing from
the date of the Trademark Licensing Agreement on a royalty-free
basis.

Landsea Group, as the registered proprietor of the PRC Trademarks,
is beneficially held as to 50% by Mr. Tian. Landsea Group is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the transaction under the Trademark Licensing
Agreement constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the right to use the PRC Trademarks is granted to the Group on
a royalty-free basis, the transaction under the Trademark Licensing
Agreement will be within the de minimis threshold provided under
Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules and will be exempt from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For the Year of 2024, no amount was paid by the Group to Landsea
Group under the Trademark Licensing Agreement.
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(b)

Operation and Management Framework Agreement

On 16 December 2022, the Beihai Langrun Commercial Management
Limited* (3t 78 BAJE 7 % & 32 8 R 2 7]) (‘Beihai Langrun”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Shanghai
Landsea Apartment Industrial Development Limited* (_t /& BA 5 &
X% E G R A A) (‘Shanghai Landsea Apartment’) entered
into the framework agreement (the “Operation and Management
Framework Agreement’), pursuant to which the members of the
Beihai Langrun will provide the members of the Shanghai Landsea
Apartment Group with apartment long-term lease operation and

management services.

Shanghai Landsea Apartment is ultimately owned as to 50% by Mr.
Tian. Accordingly, Shanghai Landsea Apartment is an associate of
Mr. Tian and the transactions contemplated under the Operation
and Management Framework Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The annual caps for service fees under the Operation and
Management Framework Agreement for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are RMB33.0 million,
RMB36.0 million and RMB40.0 million, respectively.

The total amount of the fee payable by Shanghai Landsea Apartment
and its subsidiaries to Beihai Langrun and its subsidiaries under the
Operation and Management Framework Agreement for the Year of
2024 was RMB12.4 million, which did not exceed the annual cap of
RMB36.0 million for the Year of 2024.

*  For identification purposes only
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(c)

114

2023 Landsea Green Management Properties Services and
Properties Consulting Agreement

On 13 October 2023, the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) and Landsea Green Management (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into the framework agreement (the
“2023 Landsea Green Management Properties Services and
Properties Consulting Agreement’), pursuant to which the Group
shall provide Properties Services and Properties Consulting Services to
Landsea Green Management and its subsidiaries from time to time (the
“Landsea Green Management Group”) for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026.

The services include (i) property management services, including but
not limited to, preliminary property management services for property
projects prior to their delivery to the property owners, management
services for property units and car parking lots which remain unsold
and house repairing services; (i) sales agency services for residential
properties, commercial properties and car parking lots of property
projects which remain unsold; and (iii) pre-delivery property
consultancy and management services, including but not limited to,
preliminary planning and design consultancy services and display

units managements services.

Landsea Green Management is directly and indirectly held as to
58.52% by Mr. Tian, and therefore is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Tian.

The annual caps for service fees under the 2023 Landsea Green
Management Properties Services and Properties Consulting
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December 2024,
2025 and 2026 are RMB40.0 million, RMB40.0 million and RMB40.0

million, respectively.

The total amount of the fee payable by Landsea Green Management
Group to the Group under the 2023 Landsea Green Management
Properties Services and Properties Consulting Agreement for the Year
of 2024 was RMB2.8 million, which did not exceed the annual cap of
RMB40.0 Million for the Year of 2024.
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(d)

(e)

2023 Mr. Tian Properties Services and Properties Consulting
Agreement

On 13 October 2023, the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) and Mr. Tian (for himself and on behalf of his associates,
excluding Landsea Green Management and its subsidiaries but
including its joint ventures and associates) entered into the framework
agreement (the “2023 Mr. Tian Properties Services and Properties
Consulting Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group shall provide
the properties services and properties consulting services to Mr. Tian
Associates for a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2024
to 31 December 2026.

Mr. Tian, the Chairman, an executive Director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, is a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the 2023 Mr. Tian
Properties Services and Properties Consulting Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual caps for service fees under the 2023 Mr. Tian Properties
Services and Properties Consulting Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2024, 2025 and 2026 are RMB80.0 million,
RMB80.0 million and RMB80.0 million, respectively.

The total amount of the fee payable by the Mr. Tian Associates to the
Group under the 2023 Mr. Tian Properties Services and Properties
Consulting Agreement for the Year of 2024 was RMB28.4 million,
which did not exceed the annual cap of RMB80.0 million for the Year
of 2024.

2023 Mr. Tian Exclusive Property Sales Agency Services
Agreement

On 13 October 2023, the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) and Mr. Tian (for himself and on behalf of his associates,
excluding Landsea Green Management and its subsidiaries but
including its joint ventures and associates) entered into the framework
agreement (the “2023 Mr. Tian Exclusive Property Sales Agency
Services Agreement’), pursuant to which the Group shall provide
exclusive property sales agency services to Mr. Tian Associates for a term

of three years commencing from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026.
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Mr. Tian, the Chairman, a non-executive Director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, is a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the 2023 Mr.
Tian Exclusive Property Sales Agency Services Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The respective annual maximum amounts of agency security deposits
payable by the Group to Mr. Tian Associates under the 2023 Mr. Tian
Exclusive Property Sales Agency Services Agreement for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2024, 2025 and 2026 are RMB120.0
million, RMB80.0 million and RMB50.0 million, respectively.

The aggregate security deposits payable by Group to the Mr. Tian
Associates under the 2023 Mr. Tian Exclusive Sales Agency Agreement
for the Year of 2024 was RMB120.0 million, which did not exceed the
annual cap of RMB120.0 million for the Year of 2024.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 19 February 2024, Suzhou Luteng Healthcare Technology Co. Ltd* (%
Mo ERERRARA A
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as procurer, and Nanjing
(ARBRMEZREERRAF) (‘Qingyu

Elderly Service"), as service provider, entered into the service procurement

("Luteng Healthcare Technology”),

Qingyu Elderly Service Co. Ltd.*

agreement (the “Service Procurement Agreement’) in relation to the
procurement of elderly care related services. The contract price of the Service
Procurement Agreement is RMB5,371,000 (tax inclusive). Qingyu Elderly
Service is indirectly held as to 50% by Mr. Tian. As Qingyu Elderly Service is an
associate of Mr. Tian, it is a connected person of the Company. The Service
Procurement Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

For further information, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 19 February 2024.

Please refer to the section headed “Material Acquisitions and Disposals” for
further details of the connected transactions of the Group entered into for
the FY2024.
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REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BY INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and have
confirmed that such continuing connected transactions were:

(1) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  conducted on normal commercial terms or better terms; and

(3)  carried out pursuant to the agreements of relevant transactions,
the terms of which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

REVIEW OF CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS BY THE AUDITOR

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers was engaged to report on the Group's continuing

connected transactions.

Below was set out in the letter from the auditor containing their findings and
conclusions of the review in respect of the disclosed continuing connected

transactions:

(1) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have

not been approved by the Board;

(2)  for the transactions that involve the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to the auditor's attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the transactions were not conducted, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;
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(3)  nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(4)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention
that causes the auditor to believe that the amounts of the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual caps as
set by the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the Year of 2024 are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions and Connected Transactions” in this annual report,
no related party transaction of the Group falls under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

In relation to the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions mentioned above, the Board confirms that the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On 17 June 2021, Mr. Tian and Honor Limited, the controlling shareholders
of the Company, executed a deed of non-competition in favour of the
Company to the effect that each of them will not, and will procure each of
their respective close associates not to, directly or indirectly participate in,
or hold any right or interest, or otherwise be involved in any business which
may be in competition with the business of the Group.

Mr. Tian and Honor Limited have provided the Company with a written
confirmation dated 18 March 2023, in which Mr. Tian and Honor Limited
confirmed that, from the Listing Date to the date of such written
confirmation, they did not have and their close associates did not have
interest in any business apart from the business of the Group which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group's

business.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF OR
EXEMPTION

There is no provision on pre-emptive rights in the Articles of Association and
under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The Company is not aware of any tax
relief or exemption available to any existing shareholder by reason of his/her
holding of the securities of the Company.

Intending holders and investors of the Company’s shares are recommended
to consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to the
taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing for, purchasing,
holding, disposing of or dealing in the shares of the Company.

It is emphasized that none of the Company or its directors or officers will
accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of
shares in the Company resulting from their subscription for, purchase,
holding, disposal of or dealing in such shares of the Company.

LOAN AGREEMENTS WITH COVENANTS

RELATING TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The Company did not enter into any new loan agreement, which
contained any covenant relating to specific performance of the controlling
shareholders and shall be disclosed as required by Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares. Intending holders
and investors of the Company’s shares are recommended to consult their
professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to the taxation implications
(including tax relief) of subscribing for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or
dealing in shares. It is emphasized that none of the Company or its Directors
or officers will accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities
of, holders of shares in the Company resulting from their subscription for,
purchase, holding, disposal of or dealing in such shares.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors have confirmed that the Company
has maintained the prescribed minimum public float under the Listing Rules
since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Summary of the Group's results and assets and liabilities for the latest five
financial years is set out in the section headed “Financial Summary” on pages
277 to 279 of this report.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2024
are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report, respectively.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Group has purchased and maintained liability insurance for the Directors
for the Year of 2024, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.

The permitted indemnity is in force for the benefit of one or more Directors
of the Company, or of an associate company of the Company, during the
financial year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2024, other than those purchased by the trustee for the share award scheme.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company did not have any treasury shares (as
defined in the Listing Rules).
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning management and administration of the whole or
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into during the
Year of 2024, or subsisted at the end of the Year of 2024.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or the
Group after 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN
Details of the retirement benefits plan of the Group for the relevant year are
set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the Year of 2024, no forfeited contributions had been used by the
Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of remuneration of Directors and five highest paid individuals for the
relevant year are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company for the Year of 2025 (the "AGM")
is expected to be held on Friday, 20 June 2025 at 10th Floor, Hongxin
Building, No. 98 Jianye Road, Qinhuai District, Nanjing, China. The notice of
the AGM will be published on the Company’s website (www.landseawy.com)
and the website of the Stock Exchange and despatched to the shareholders
of the Company in the manner as required by the Listing Rules in due

course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR THE
AGM

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 17 June 2025 to Friday, 20 June 2025, both
dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
All transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 16 June
2025.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers retired as the auditor of the Company at the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 14 June
2024. At the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board resolved
to appoint Baker Tilly as the new auditor of the Company. The appointment
of Baker Tilly was approved by the Shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on 24 July 2024. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 24 May 2024, 4 July 2024 and 24 July
2024 and the circular of the Company dated 5 July 2024. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been
audited by Baker Tilly.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in auditors of the Company
for the past three years.

ACCOUNTS REVIEW

The Audit Committee of the Company has been established in accordance
with Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules, with written terms of reference.
The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to review and supervise
the Company’s financial reporting, risk management and internal control
systems, and assist the Board in performing its duties to the Group.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year of 2024, and discussed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, as well as internal controls,
financial reporting and other matters, with the Group’s management.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it operates. The Group operates its business in
compliance with applicable environmental protection laws and regulations
and has implemented relevant environmental protection measures in
compliance with the required standards under applicable PRC laws and

regulations.

For further details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance
will be disclosed in the ESG Report of the Company for the Year of 2024
to be published at the same time as this report in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The 2024 ESG Report will be published on the website of
the Company at www.landseawy.com and can be accessed at the section
headed “Sustainability Development” of the Company and on the website of
the Stock Exchange.

By order of the Board
Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited

Mr. Tian Ming
Executive Director and Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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To the shareholders of Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Landsea Green Life
Service Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 135 to 276, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting

policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T8 M 1% BN R

OTHER MATTER Hth =18

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended EBE&BHEZE_ZT_=F+_A=+—HLFEX
31 December 2023 were audited by another independent auditor whose  4RE W BRMERE A S — BB L IZHAIEZ - ER =
report dated 28 March 2024 expressed an unmodified opinion on those Z_PE=A -+ N\NBELEHNREHZEGEEY
consolidated financial statements. BWMEARTERBER -

KEY AUDIT MATTERS BRETSIE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, BEEEst FERRIBERFIN X AL - RAEHAE
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial #R& M EHRENBFITRAEEMNEE - FLEHE
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the HERPIBABRGAPHRRNHES RAFHET
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and ~ BRIEH] c R T L HELEHIBHEBHER -

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows: REMAETP B H A BERESSESMRAT -
Impairment assessment of trade receivables and other receivables . B 5 FE YR IE K E fth FE W R IR B BT 1S
Impairment assessment of goodwill . B R E T
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Key audit matter

HEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANESTNNEEREETER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and other receivables

B 5 W 55 TR R A b B 558 7Y el 16 5P 1

(b) (Credit risk), note 23 (Trade receivables),
note 24 (Prepayments and other receivables) and note 4(A)

Refer to note 3.1

(Critical accounting estimates and judgements for impairment of
receivables) to the consolidated financial statements.

B2 BREANE3IDL (BERR)  WE23(ES
JEWFRIA) ~ Bt 5E 24 (FRAT FRIA K E At U FRIR) B BT 5 4(A)
(BWFIERENBR S HEE RFAE) -

As at 31 December 2024, net carrying amount of the Group's trade
receivables and other receivables was approximately RMB176.50
million and approximately RMB44.80 million respectively. For the
year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised expected
credit loss (“ECL") provision of approximately RMB88.00 million
and approximately RMB84.33 million respectively against trade
receivables and other receivables.
RZZBZWNF+_A=+—H E5EEFEWREBERH
fib YR IB BRE R E DRI RO AR 17650 B & T KA
ARE4BETL -BE T _WF+_A=+—HIF
B BB RIBE S WK GRIE K& H i & WK IE #E R 78 5
EEBR((FHMEEBE BBEOARKS0HE T MG
AR¥EBIIZEETT

For trade receivables and other receivables due from related
parties, which are with distinct credit risk characteristics and
occurrence of credit impairment, management evaluated the
distribution of expected cash flows under a liquidation basis
scenario based on experience of historical credit loss, business
model, current situations and forecasts of future conditions of
contract counterparties, and made corresponding provision for ECL
according to ECL rate under the liquidation basis scenario. ECL was
recognised on an individual basis.
HEFBEFEERREBRBEECEERENEKANSZ
S RERWRIA R B U RIEN S - ERERBATEES
Téim%’i CEBEN  BRIBARAS Y F T REMRAETE
Al AHEBEELEBRTHNEHAREREL M - WIRE

==
/B

Ei EBER THEPRCEEBREXTREENEREES
1BR M - FHE BB RIRE R B ERER
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
receivables and other receivables are included below.

A B 5 e Y TR IE I E A FE R TEE TR E AT (A AR
EHRTX o

We obtained an understanding of the management'’s internal
control and process of impairment assessment of trade receivables
and other receivables and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors.

BT REEEYE SR WERIE K& H YR IE R E R
ETOAREZEENRE  &EEMGFT I EERENRE
EREMERRRERNKFE  FEERERRENE
HREK o

We understood, evaluated and tested, on a sample basis, the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the key controls
over the Group's assessment of ECL provision for trade receivables
and other receivables.

BAPIAEETT A T 8 - RS BB S EFHEE B UK
BREMERFIENFEREEERREN T REEEHEN

REF - BT RIEERR -

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of provision
for ECL of trade receivables and other receivables to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process by comparing
the ECL as estimated in the prior year against the actual collection
performance of the customers and other debtors in the current
year.

BT BT B B 5 e WK IA K H fh e IR
BEBENTHER FRANBRBEFEMATNEREE
BEERFEER RAMEBEBANBRBRKE - TG
EREMTBENARE -

XIBBEBEE

a &5
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Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANESTNNEEREETER

For trade receivables and other receivables due from third parties,
which are without distinct credit risk characteristics and without
occurrence of credit impairment, ECL was recognised on both
individual and collective basis. For trade receivables and other
receivables arising from low quality projects which the Group
no longer provides services, provision for ECL is measured at a
probability-weighted amount that reflects the possibility that a
credit loss occurs, and time value of money with consideration of
past settlement patterns, current conditions of the debtors and
forward-looking macro-economic information.
HEBREERAREHARBECERENEREKE=72
5 PR R IR I Ho A e WK IR T = - TREAE B 1R 1R (A 5l &
SREERR RAKETHRHERBHEZEEEEAE
EMESHRWKRIBREMERFIENS  HHEEERR
HEREBEEEEEITREENRENESBEUREER
FEEAE FANREEEEEERNA EBAERMRRI R
A REEBEER -

For the remaining trade receivables and other receivables arising
from on-going properties projects, they have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics. Provision for ECL is estimated
based on historical data, including the past settlement profile and
incurred credit losses in observed periods, and existing market
conditions with adjustment to reflect forward looking factors.
HREEARETHEMAETER N HERE F R WKIE K HAD
EYFEmS  ERBHARAGERREZETSE - B
EEERBREDREBAIHE (ERAEAEMALE RS
FEEENEEER) MRTMRME  WIEL B IARER
ATBEMHEE X -

We consider impairment assessment of trade receivables and other
receivables a key audit matter due to the significance of receivables
balance and the significant judgements and estimates made by
management in the impairment assessment.

H 1R B 5 FE Wk IE & H i B WK IR RME R R A B | AT
FE REDEWFEESRTIEERBEREEEETRE
ATk B VR L B K 1 T R Ak 5t e

We assessed the reasonableness of methods and assumptions
used and judgements made by management by (a) assessing the
appropriateness of the ECL provisioning methodology, (b) inquiring
management regarding the credit worthiness of customers and
other debtors, (c) analysing historical payment pattern of customers
and other debtors, (d) checking the accuracy, on a sample
basis, of the key data inputs such as the aging schedule of trade
receivables and other receivables, (e) testing the accuracy of the
calculations of ECL rates based on the historical loss and forward-
looking information, (f) evaluating the rationale of management’s
assumptions of expected cash flow distribution based on business
model and (g) evaluating the reasonableness of the forward-looking
adjustments made by management;
BMERATAHATEERERA T ERKRERAKRAIEH
et @ ARBEEBREEFTEZNEENL 0
MERBEATFPLHEMEBANGE: 0o MEFRE
EFANELNRER ) WEREERE ARE (WE
5 FE MR IR T H A i W R TR B BR R B T %) BV B 0 (@R
BE S BB LA E AR EEER R ER
ORBEERXTHEEEHERARERESENRENE
BUHRQMEEREBELNAEEFAZRNSEMN ;

We evaluated the results of management’s sensitivity analysis using
reasonably possible changes of the relevant key parameters.
BPERIEAAE2HA S E R E 8T (4B IR E /) B
ERMER -
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Key audit matter

HEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANESTNNEEREETER

Impairment assessment of goodwill

B E R {8 AT 1

Refer to note 21 (Goodwill) and note 4(B) (Critical accounting
estimates and judgements for impairment of goodwill) to the
consolidated financial statements.

E2REe M RARME2 (AE) kM40 (BB RED
RAs et bt RAHE) -

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had goodwill of approximately
RMB57.77 million (net of impairment loss of amounted to
approximately RMB123.27 million).
RZEBEZWF+—A=+—0 ' EEENEENAARYK
5777 A& T (HBRREBENARK12227887T) °

For the purposes of goodwill impairment assessment, management
assessed the impairment of goodwill by determining the
recoverable amounts of the cash generated units ("CGU") based
on higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use (“"VIU").
The VIU calculation used discounted cash flow forecasts based on
financial budgets approved by management. Management has
engaged an independent qualified valuer to assist them in the
goodwill impairment assessment.

HEBRENS  EEBERRATERLEEXAREHRE
B(ERAEED B aEECHeELEU ([(REELEN])
AREEE - EREEAEEAENEEBEHENM KR
EMHBERERETEN BEEEST & EKBE LGB/
B E 1T BRI E R -
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We tested the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of ECL
provision of trade receivables and other receivables.
BHMASEZEEFAREMERFIEEREEEIEEE
SRR BB EREN

Based on the procedures performed, we found the judgements and
estimates used in the impairment assessment of trade receivables
and other receivables to be supportable by available evidence.
RIBFTAITIER - RIFIEIRE 5 8 WA N H e Y k08
TR EE R PR HI T R st BRI S E R -

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of goodwill
are included below.

BPSEmBETREMENRTFER T -

We obtained an understanding of management'’s assessment
process of goodwill impairment and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to management
bias or fraud.
BPESHEREEREREMNGOTERFNTE HA
REH AT T HEMLRRENEMERRRE = (WEHEE -
ITEL ZPRERRESMFOAMNL) AKFEEHE
B [\ ) B K 5 A B 1T AT A

We evaluated management’s identification of CGUs and allocation
of goodwill based on the Group’s accounting policy and our
understanding of the Group's business.

Rz ESENSHTBRMKEME EXREEBOTH T
BEREHRSEAEMNIFIMEEN DR -
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Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANESTNNEEREETER

Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the
goodwill impairment assessment. These significant judgements
and estimates include the adoption of appropriate model and
methodology to perform goodwill impairment assessment and
the use of key assumptions in the VIU calculation, which primarily
include annual revenue growth rates, gross profit margins, long-
term growth rates and discount rates. The judgements and
estimates are subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The
inherent risk in relation to the goodwill impairment assessment is
considered significant due to uncertainty of significant assumptions

used.

Lﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁéﬁﬂ%&ﬁﬁ ZEBER
i R R RERAEE R R RETERERER
UREERBEAETIRAEZRSR AEBRRIESE
FRINAERE - EF X RAERERIE - ZFH
R ARG ETEEMENTE - AREREX
BRENTHEEMN  EHBERENEEENNERRERR

BKR-

We consider impairment assessment of goodwill a key audit matter
due to the significance of the goodwill balance and the significant
judgements and estimates made by management in the goodwill
impairment assessment.

BPREAERENERARENZE REARBEERT
BEAXBEREEETEERE LR ELEAHE KT -

We assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
external valuer engaged by management.

BPFFETEEBRANIINSTEMHER  BEEIR
BB -

We obtained management’s assessment on goodwill impairment
and assess the appropriateness of the model and methodology
adopted by management to perform goodwill impairment
assessment and the discount rates, long-term growth rates used
by management, with the involvement of our in-house valuation
experts.

ﬁiﬁﬂl%%ﬁﬁ WEERMEN G TERMAFEERER
B2 ET E%EME?ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂqm*i*”&ﬁ
FEMEREMRKANMRERRAEREXELREE -

We challenged and assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used in the VIU calculation, including comparing
annual revenue growth rates and gross profit margins in the
financial budgets approved by management with the relevant
historical financial data and market data, where applicable.
B ETERERBEFETEANIERRNGE NS
BREEFERSEREMENEEERERHENVHEREE
MR - ERMBEIRARTSEE (WER) EfTHER -

We performed a retrospective review by comparing the estimated
cash flow forecasts prepared in previous year with the current year’s
actual results to assess the reliability and historical accuracy of
management’s forecasting process.

ﬁﬁ’ﬁ?&ﬁ TEEMES $L-—FENRFRSRERA
HEFEREEETTHER  UTHEBEERANBRRNA
SR Sk ERENE o
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Key audit matter

HEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANESTNNEEREETER

130

Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited / Annual Report 2024

We evaluated the reasonableness of the sensitivity analysis
performed by management on the key assumptions to understand
the impact of reasonable changes in assumptions on the
recoverable amounts.

BMAEBTEEBATOHER LTS IR - AR
RGBS HAIKESENTE -

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculations of the
goodwill impairment assessment.

BFRE T BEREMN G ENEMEREE -

We assessed the relevant disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of management’s impairment assessment
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
BPK2ERTGAENNRENEEENBEHRETPAH
IR ERERT AR R EE o

Based on the procedures performed, we found the significant
judgements and estimates in relation to the goodwill impairment
assessment to be supportable by available evidence.
RIBFTAITIZFP - P13 IR g B E T (4 P B E X HI T &
(FRECEIECECE: S
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.

ERREFAHEMESAE - R ENEBRER
FE—EH  EFEMBHRRREMAREERN
2GRN

HAHSEMBRRNBEELL MREEMES - R
P HZEFRMESRRTALANERS

A
Ay ©

HmABMERAMBHRRNET  RANEERH
EEMEE - HEUBRET  EREMESEE LR
EMBBRRABRMEERFBREPHATHENBRTF
HEEABBAEUTHFEERERRANER -

ERBMABTHOIHE RRMIBREMES
FHEEAHRRL RMAFTEREZEE -HEES
| RPPREERERS -

EERBERZEERGEMBERREA
EENEME

ERRERAAERBEBTEGTMASTRMN(E
AR E R EA) REBCR R MR ER
EREBEEMPENGEEPBHRER  UHERRA
ERBMBHRENEE TN FERRREFFHERM
BERNEANERPAFAFOANIIEFEE

EREEeMBHREE EXREANE EEER
B YEERBATRERRSELLES
BANER URERFELE RS ER  RIFE

EEER BESRERRIEFELLYE HPEEME
FREVERTE -

EVZEEARAEEE ESENMBHREERE-
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
alsor

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on
the group financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for the purpose
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

HESRAKEKESTERNBEEIEL
Eim e REMEDRNETBRE BERLF
EE@%IEEJZI MBBNERTEEE 1M
gREHRY SRENRELEENELE
Kii)‘g CMREMRBRBEFEEATHEE N -
AENBERBMBETRBEAEIES
EMBEHRRTNEERE REEHENEE
B AIRMEERRFEREER - J
B 4 i e X BRI R 5 B AR PRERIS BV R 5T
BRE A ARREREXBAAEES &

SETRERELE -

FESSUBHRRNERI RN - BB
AT BREEE UEREAUBHREEES
BERRBABERZXHMER -

RETHTERET Ut EEERNEE
REBEMNH K E R ERTED BENERT
BE ERUEENBRREREROELR -
BMaEES EERBFHAETEES
MBITHES TE - RMABSFERRES
BB -

BREMEEIN  HPEEEZZESBRTAEANE
AHEE - BRTH  EXEAERS ’Tﬁﬁzﬁﬁ
BT AP R H P B AR R Y (R (] KBRS ©
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wan Wing Ping.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025

Wan Wing Ping
Practising certificate number P07471
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

refBm EMEE WS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HiZ2 —ZE —F+—_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-NE E =
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR®T R ARBTIT
Revenue & 6 788,610 931,275
Cost of sales and services $HE KR A 9 (720,802) (785,898)
Gross profit EF 67,808 145,377
Other income HAth g A 3,009 5393
Selling expenses HERX (26,300) (23,768)
Administrative expenses TBRS (89,487) (113,097)
Impairment losses under expected EEEEEEEX TREEIE
credit loss model 3.1 (b) (172,334) (181,021)
Impairment losses for goodwill EmEMEREEREBE
and intangible assets 18,21 (140,221) -
Other losses — net E M EEFE 8 (6,160) (2,/428)
Operating loss KEEBE (363,685) (169,544)
Finance income R LN 10 1,201 1,488
Finance cost B 75 A AR 10 (74) (117)
Finance income — net U3 ONE 2 10 1,127 1,371
Share of net (loss)/profit of associates FEAGEE & N R)F (B518) kas 19 (928) 291
Share of net profit of joint ventures ElEEERFEFWE 20 416 616
Loss before income tax BRETEHAIEE (363,070) (167,266)
Income tax credit FrisHiE e 11 43,696 32,004
Loss for the year FREE (319,374) (135,262)
135
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 L EZE T —WFE+-_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—EBE-ME —E_=4F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
L AR®ET ARET T
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hithemzs  (EE)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to B8 AJEEF S BB EH -
profit or loss:
— Exchange difference on translation of — REBINEBEL Z5E
foreign operations (5,912) (4,246)
Item that will not be reclassified to B REE P EE B EE
profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation — BHEEEHRERZTE
from functional currency to presentation EAERENZ5E
currency 5,933 4,155
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FRHEMEENE(FHE)
for the year, net of tax HIBRBLE 21 o1
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAEEEBERE (319,353) (135,353)
Loss for the year attributable to: D& FEEFEAES:
— Equity owners of the Company — RNAFIERERB A (318,330) (134,233)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (1,044) (1,029)
(319,374) (135,262)
Total comprehensive loss AT FEEFEFREZE
for the year attributable to: BB
— Equity owners of the Company — A REEREEA (318,309) (134,324)
— Non-controlling interests — FEERRE S (1,044) (1,029)
(319,353) (135,353)
Loss per share attributable to ARG ERETA
equity owners of the Company EEEREE
Basic loss per share (RMB) EREABE(ARE) 12 (0.831) (0.349)
Diluted loss per share (RMB) REEBEE(ARE) 12 (0.831) (0.349)
The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive | it 47 & 18 25 |2 H #b 2 T Uk 25 35 JE B BE MY B 5T —
income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. HEE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ARE A R

Asat 31 December 2024 W =—ZE - F+=-F=+—H

2024 2023
—EEF —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARET INESLSSETE
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties "EYE 15 242 365
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BRERF&E 16 12,231 14,856
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 2,288 1,415
Intangible assets mARE 18 99,582 127,919
Interests in associates 73%355 &N A HHE a 19 5,740 1,398
Interests in joint ventures RELELENER 20 1,883 1,467
Goodwill EES 21 57,770 181,041
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTRE E 27 111,072 68,099
290,808 396,560
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables B 5 W EIE 23 176,495 215,188
Inventories FE 750 1,091
Prepayments and other receivables TE AT K78 I H b fE U GRIR 24 67,486 137,562
Restricted cash ZRERE 25 12,764 4,643
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 25 293,739 332,783
551,234 691,267
Total assets EEHE 842,042 1,087,827
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 1,449 751
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISTRAE 27 16,257 20,543
17,706 21,294
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5N H b ENFRIE 26 605,485 564,046
Contract liabilities EHaE 6 251,556 210,873
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 568 608
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFT ST & & 21,923 25,906
879,532 801,433
Total liabilities =Rt 897,238 822,727
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR BB AR LR

Asat 31 December 2024 R =—ZE—NF+=-F=+—H

2024 2023
—EWEF —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR®T R ARET T
EQUITY iz
Capital and reserves attributable to EATEREEABLELRRFE
equity owners of the Company
Share capital TN 28 3,421 3,421
Reserves ] 30 (60,430) 255,455
(57,009) 258,876
Non-controlling interests FERER 31 1,813 6,224
Total (deficit)/equity (FRF), REHEE (55,196) 265,100
Total liabilities and deficit/equity BERAT EEEE 842,042 1,087,827
The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in  _F 3t 4R & B 75RO 2% FE B BE B B 55 — GF B8 -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 135 to 276 were approved by the Board

of Directors on 28 March 2025 and were signed on its behalf.

Wu Xu
RE
Director

EZ
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CONSOLIDATED DI AR OIEEREANGIE S N EQUITY
GABREDR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HiZ2 —ZE —F+—_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity owners of the Company

ARTELER AR
Share-based Non-
Share Share  compensation Employee Other Statutory Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium eserve share trust feserve Teserve Teserve eamings Total interests equity
ezl [BERG
R Riv&E i Eid EbERE EERE i FERER &t HENER BHEE

RBO0O RMBO0O RVBO0D RVBO0D RBO00 RMBO0O RVBO0D RBO0D RIBO0O RMBO0O RVBO0D
ABRTTE  ARETT  ARMTR  ARMTz  ARMTn  ARMTn  ARMTn  ARMTx  ARMTz  ARMTn  ARETR

At1January 2023 W-B-=f¥-A-H 34 268017 1292 (2873) (81,880) 20467 (246) 183567 391,765 7263 399028
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - (134233 (134233) (1029) (135,262
Other comprehensive loss A2EER - - = = = - 9 - &) - o
Total comprehensive lossforthe year FA2ABRLE - - - - - - 9 (134233) (134324 (109) (135353)
Moverent of employee share EEROERERD

trust account = = = (1.265) = - - - (1,265) - (1,265)
Employee share-based compensation B BHESRE (Wi 20)

(note 29(A)) - - 2700 - - - - - 2700 - 2700
Acquisttion of subsidiaries KRB - - - - - - - - - (10) (10)
Appropriation o statutory reserve BELERE - - - - - 423 - 4 = = =

- - 2700 (1,269) - 423 - (4293) 1435 (10) 1425
At31 December 2023 R=%=z§
+ZA=t-H 341 268017 399 4138 (81.880) 24690 (337) 4511 258876 6,224 265,100
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CONSOLIDATED o LANENMENTE QIS CHRSINGE S HINARCIET Y
GO ERBE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl Z —ZE—F+—_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity owners of the Company

ARARERAARE
Retained
Share-based earnings/ Non- Total
Share Share  compensation Employee Other Statutory  Translation  (accumulated controlling equity/
capital premium reserve share trust reserve reserve reserve losses) Total interests (deficit)
RESH EaRH RERF/ &8/ (59)
us Rt eE #h s Rl EERE EXfE  (ZHER) &t FBRER 4%

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARRTR  ARWTR ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARRTR

At1January 2024 RZB-0%
-5-A 34 268017 3992 (4,138) (81,880) 24,690 (337) 4511 258,476 6224 265,100
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - (318,330) (318,330) (1,044) (319,374)
Other comprehensive income b2 EHE - - - - - - 21 - 21 - 21
Total comprehensive ER2ERE/
income/(loss) for the year (B8 &8 - - - - - - 21 (318,330) (318,309) (1,044) (319,353)
Movement of employee share EERHETERD
trust account - - - (310) - - - - (310) - (310)
Employee share-based compensation EEMRIER
(note 29(4) (HtsE290) - - 2734 - - - - - 2,734 - 2734
Deemed disposal o asubsidiary Rt E-RHE
(note33) AA(H3E) - - - - - - - - - (3,367) (3.367)
Appropriation to statutory reserve BELEGE - - - - - 213 - (2723) - - -
- - 23734 310) - 23 - (2723) 204 (3367) (943)
At31 December 2024 RZZ-mE
+2A=1-8 342 268017 6726 (4,448) (81,880) 27413 (B16) (27598 (57,009) 1813 (55,196)
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in TE RS BB R E ARSI T —GFBIE

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED Sl ENIE NI SEEEE OVWS

an\ fﬁu Sk }ﬁf % i'%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HiZ2 —ZE —F+—_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-mE i
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5% AR®T ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEESRE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations w2 ( Fﬁ)ﬂ ) Fri5E 4 34 (20,466) 132,040
Income tax paid B S H (7,540) (12,016)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RETE (TR FERLFHE
operating activities (28,006) 120,024
Cash flows from investing activities REFTHRERE
Capital injection in an associate REtERAREE 19 (1,470) (200)
Dividend received from an associate BB N AR B 19 - 1,470
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ~ B EW¥ « MR L& E 16 (7,111) (4,936)
Purchases of intangible assets BEREEE 18 (3,487) (1,916)
Purchases of investment properties BEREME 15 (9,308) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEYE - BE REHBEHRIE
plant and equipment 289 104
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMERBRIE
investment properties 10,029 128
Funding to related parties M) B EE 75 & 35(F) (76,306) (120,823)
Repayment of funding to related parties [m] A BSE 77 (& R K 35(F) 75,623 181,106
Net cash outflows from deemed disposal of RIEHE—FHHEB AR M
a subsidiary e FE 33 (10,294) -
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries UL EEFT B A R K 33 (2,683) (196,916)
Net cash used in investing activities RETBFARSFEHE (24,718) (141,983)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETEHRERE
Interest paid BT F A 34(B) (74) (117)
Proceeds from related parties R B Fa s 7 #) PT 1S ROR 35(E) 19,852 140
Repayment to related parties [\ B8 B 5 i 3K 35(E) (3,917) (63)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRAE IS 34(B) (1,891) (2,076)
Shares bought back for employee share trust ~ HL{E 8 B 7= 7E8E 2 IX 15 30 (310) (1,265)
Net cash generated from/(used in) METBRE (FTA)RLFHE
financing activities 13,660 (3,381)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
/\\/T\ fﬁiﬁ%i’%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl Z —ZE—F+—_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—BomEF gzt e

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

L AR®ET ARET T

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BEE&NBESEZEYRD FHE (39,064) (25,340)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#13R & RIREEEY 332,783 358,166

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SN B SR BB R & 20 (43)

Cash and cash equivalentsatend of year H£ARBRERBELSZEEY 25 293,739 332,783
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in MEAR e neEREEBEN T —FHEE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B % ¥R P et

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HiZ2 —ZE —F+—_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Landsea Green Life Service Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 1 December 2020 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Act,
Cap 22 (Act 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KYI-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the provision of property management services, community value-
added services, value-added services to non-property owners and
apartment operation and management services in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on 8 July 2021 (the “Listing”). In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the ultimate holding company
and ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company is Tian Family
Holding Pte. Ltd, a company incorporated in Singapore, and Mr. Tian
Ming, the executive director of the Group respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
Renminbi ("RMB’000") unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(A) COMPLIANCE WITH HKFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS AND HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards
as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 (‘HKCO").

HKFRS Accounting Standards comprise the following
authoritative literature:

HKFRS Accounting Standards

Hong Kong Accounting Standards

Interpretations developed by the HKICPA

—REHR

S ERBERAR (X287 R =
T TFET A HRBEFAEHEEFER
BERAVE(CNAR—FEZ=ZFED - BFER
B ERSHEEIMALRERRBERAQ
7] o AN 7] 5} #F = 5E b 4k & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KYI-
1111, Cayman Islands ©

RRABRBREERAT - ARAREKMBA
Al (HAEE) TEETPEARANR
(ThEDREEHYEEERS  LEIEE
RS - IEXTERERE M ABLE NEERR o

RARAFRRZBEZ—FELANBRBEBHER
SHBERAREREM (LT - XRAFE
BERA ARANRZIERRA A REEER
f& 5 % Bll & Tian Family Holding Pte. Ltd (B4 %70
FAMEK AR RAEBHRITESHRAE
o

BRIEZEFHR  BHMBERTIAARE T
T(AR®TR]) 275 -

R E R

(A) BTERMBEREETEURSE
& 1 BMx B
ARBREMBAR (REIREE]) 2
HAMBHREARBELGMAE (&
BEMAE) BHZ2BEMBRE S
SRR ERENE622TEF B R AME
B EBARRE]) 2 WERERH -

BB B WE ST ERBIE T I RER
Ef -

BB BmE gt ER

BB AR

BEGMASRRNEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B % ¥Rk P et

For the year ended 31 December 2024 Bl Z —ZE—F+—_A=+—HILFE

2

144

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(B)

(9]

HISTORICAL COST CONVENTION
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately RMB319.37 million and as at 31 December
2024 the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB328.30 million and the Group had a deficit in equity
attributable to equity owners of the Company of approximately
RMB57.01 million. These circumstances may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

For the purpose of assessing going concern, the directors
of the Company have prepared a cash flow forecast of the
Group covering a period of twelve months from the end of the
reporting period (the “Cash Flow Forecast’) with plans and
measures to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve
its financial position. Based on the Cash Flow Forecast, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group is
able to continue as a going concern and would have sufficient
financial resources to finance the Group’s operations and meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated
financial statements to adjust the value of the Group's assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities, respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B % ¥R P et

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HiZ2 —ZE —F+—_A=+—HILFE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(D) AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING

(E)

STANDARDS ADOPTED BY THE GROUP

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards for the first time for its annual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2024:

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback — Amendments
to HKFRS 16

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020) — Amendments to HKAS 1

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants — Amendments
to HKAS 1

Supplier Finance Arrangements — Amendments to HKAS
7 and HKFRS 7

The amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards listed above
did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised
in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS NOT YET ADOPTED

Certain new accounting standards and amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Stan